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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)

Financial Statements
For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
and

Audit Report of Certified Public Accountant



AUDIT REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

To the Shareholders of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED):

I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED and subsidiaries as at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years then
ended. I have also audited the balance sheets of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
as at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the years then ended. The management of the KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED is responsible for the correctness and completeness of the information
presented in these financial statements. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audits.

1 conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and
cash flows for each of the years then ended, and the separate financial position and the resuits of
operations and cash flows of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED for the same
period, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.



Without qualifying my opinion, [ draw attention to Note 35 to the financial statements. In the year
2003, the asset management subsidiaries changed their accounting procedure in relation to the
transfer of financial assets in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s notification, dated December 3,
2002, “Re : Accounting procedures regarding purchasing or taking of transfer of loan debtors and
supervision guidelines™, which is applicable to financial statements for accounting periods ended on
or after December 31, 2003 onwards. Accordingly, the Bank has disclosed the effect to the financial
statements in the note referred to above.

Supot Singhasaneh
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 2826

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
February 13, 2004




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND'SUBSIDIARIES

(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)

ASSETS
Cash
Interbank and money market items (Note 5)
Domestic items
Interest bearing
Non-interest bearing
Foreign items
Interest bearing
Non-interest bearing ‘

Total Interbank and Money Market ltems - net
Securities purchased under resale agreements (Note 6)
Investments (Notes 3.4, 7, 29 and 35)

Current investments - net
Long-term investments - net
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies - net
Total Investments - net
Loans and accrued interest receivables (Note 8)
L oans (Notes 3.5, 3.7, 9 and 35)
Accrued interest receivables
Total Loans and Accrued Interest Receivables

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (Notes 3.6 and 10)

Less Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring (Notes 3.7 and 11)

Less Normalized provisioning (Notes 3.8 and 12)
Total Loans and Accrued Interest Receivables - net
Properties foreclosed - net (Notes 3.9 and 13)
Customers' liability under acceptances
Premises and equipment - net (Notes 3.10 and 15)
Deferred tax assets (Notes 3.11 and 16)
Accrued income receivables
Forward exchange contract revaluation
Other assets - net (Note 3.16)

Total Assets

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Baht

Consolidated

The Bank

2003

2002

2003

2002

18,699,183,946

419,048,121
2,844,647,738

9,764,205,922

3,457,672,905
4,489,524,682

18,699,095.513

131,540,875
2,854,343,708

9,764,122,408

3,385,334,110
4,494,663.469

lOl.492.418-.240 86,532,213.914 101,492.418,240 86,532.213,914

165,862,338 360,919.334 165,862,338 360,919,334
104,921,976,437 94,840,330,835 104,644,165,161 94,773,130.827
31,710,000,000 18,400,000,000 31,710,000,000 18,400,000,000

65.490,620,866
69.240,414.,800
523,151,117

72,699,392,490
90,884,228,616
1,280,376,526

65.006,385,567
65,939,348,013

9.818,950,721

72,310,121,334
79,212,635.427
7,245.945.739

135,254,186,783

547.917.919,934

2,970,945,258

164,863,997,632

506,202.917.373
3.410,052.280

140,764,684,301

530.089,906,029
1,485,101.972

158,768,702,520

496,525,046,751

1,934,392.812

550,888,865.,192
(59,268,090,726)
(6,665,399,431)

(1,600,000,000)

509,612,969.653
(76.949.724,803)

(2.755.014,099).

(80¢.9C0,000*

531,575,008,001
(42,995,675,552)
(4,721,214,714)

(1,600,000,000)

498.,459.439,563
(54,919,951,503)
(2.647,233,500)

(800,000,000)

483,355.375,033
14,516,837,350
676,184,148
22,257,887,644
43,053,850
1,674,418.278
3,713,330,067

4,511,107,107

429.108,230,751
15,086,828,304
597,096,484
22,394,500,475
14,338,255
1,949,493,103
745,642,925

3,017.408,434

482,258,117.735
10,860,375,379
676,184,148
21,697,577,198
1,597,517,159
3,713,330,067

4,254,568.688

440,092,254,560
11,068,607,580
597,096,484

. 21,801,037,448
1,883,698.624
745,642,925

2.807,958,299

821,330,540,645

760,782,073,120

820,875,615,349

760,702,251,675

Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin

Vice Chairman

Banthoon Lamsam

President




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND'SUBSIDIARIES
’
(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)
BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits (Note 17)
Deposits in baht 682,385,560,027 649,141,061,291 682,661,690,672 649,748,041,873
Deposits in foreign currencies 2,560,416,551 2,252,107,009 2,560,416,551 2,252,107,009
Total Deposits (84,945,976,578 651,393,168,300 685,222,107.223 652,000,148,882
Interbank and money market items (Note 18)
Domestic items
Interest beaning 1.890.287.247 31.461.073,197 1.685.287,247 3.461,073,197
Non-interest bearing 4.22I‘597'.522 1,788,470,188 4,221,597,522 1,788.470,188
Foreign items
Interest bearing 486,057,709 258,049,517 486,057,709 258,049,517
Non-interest bearing 502,928,879 185,799,516 502,928,880 185,799,516
Total Interbank and Money Market Items 7,100,871,357 5.693,392,418 6,895,871,358 5,693,392,418
Liability payable on demand 7,041,817,603 3,422,940,129 7,041,817,602 3.422,940,129
Borrowings
Long-term borrowings (Notes 19, 20 and 21) 59,841,317,549 48,555,994,110 59,841,317,549 48,555,994,110
Total Borrowings 59.841,317,549 48,555,994,110 59,841,317,549 48,555.994,110
Bank's liability under acceptances 476,184,148 597,096,484 676,184,148 597,096,484
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 3.11 and 16) 3,346,832,442 4,062,196,493 3,346,832,442 4,062,196.493
Forward exchange contract revaluation 719,697,679 1,625,905,192 719,697,679 1,625,905,192
Accrued interest payables 2,564,045,074 3,030,042,472 2,563,807,047 3,030,042,472
Other liabilities 6,281,045,539 6,955,923,241 6,110,424.710 6.639,519.926
Total Liabilities 772,517,787,969 725,336.658,839 772,418,059,758 725,627,236,106




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)

Shareholders' equity
Share capital (Notes 20 and 22)
Authorized share capital
547,345 class A preferred shares, Baht 10 par value
2,689,547,345 ordinary shares, Baht 10 par value
Issued and paid-up share capital
547,345 class A preferred shares, Baht 10 par value
2,353,518,072 ordinary shares, Baht 10 par value in 2003 and
2,352,547,372 ordinary shares, Baht 10 par value in 2002
Premium on share capital
Premium on preferred shares (Note 21)
Premium on ordinary shares
Premium on expired warrants (Note 20)
Appraisal surplus on asset revaluation (Notes 3.10 and 15 )
Revaluation surplus on investments (Notes 3.4 and 7)
Retained earnings (deficit)
Agvronriated
Legal reserve (Note 24)
Other reserves (Note 25)

Unappropriated (deficit)

Minority interests
Total Shareholders' Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Off-balance sheet items - contingencies (Note 30)
Aval o bills and guaraniees of loans
Liability under unmatured import bills
Letters of credit

Other contingencies

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002

5,473,450 5,473,450 5.473,450 5,473,450
26,895,473.450 26,895,473,450 26,895,473,450 26,395,473.450
5,473,450 5,473,450 5,473,450 5,473,450

23,535,180,720 23,535.180,720
23,525.473.720 23,525,473,120
27.367.250 27,367,250 27,367.250 27,367,250

49,497,553,190
5,520,432,199
6,231,844,414

1,312,639,266

800,000,000
26,675,300,000

(65,148,234,898)

49.478,139,190
5.520.432.199
6,367,116,973

2,773,163,462

800,000,000
26,675,300,000

(80,097,450,675)

49,497,553.190
5.520.432,199
6,231.844,414

1.312,639.266

800,000,000
26,675,300,000

(65.148,234.898)

49.478,139,190
5,520,432.199
6,367,116,973

2,773,163 462

800,000,000

. 26,675,300,000

(80,097.450,675)

48,457,555,591
355,197,085

35,075.015,569
370,398,712

48,457,555,591

35,075,015,569

48,812,752,676

35,445414281

48,457,555.591

15,075.015,569

821,330,540.645

760,782,073,120

820.875.615.349

760.702.251 675

5.536.811,552
3,187.732.093
9,995,789,834
431,328,285,406

6,591,4G0,563
2,632,020,016
8,875,631,993

380,115,619,710

5,536,811.552
3,187,732,093
9.995,789.834

431,274,387,968

6.591,460,563
2,632,020,016
8.875,631.993
380,115,619,710




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY: THA] FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Babt
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
Interest and dividend income (Notes 3.2, 3.4 and 35)
Loans 26,121,173,077 25.900,395,644 24.383,366,146 25,006,666,327
Interbank and money market items 2,250,097.811 1.577,886,091 2247867481 3.575.109,741
Investments 4,414,400,286 6.430.280,792 4,404,510,774 4,756,086.614
Total laterest and Dividend Income 32,785.671,174 35,908,562,527 31,035,744,401 33,337,862,682
Interest expense (Note 3.3)
Deposits 7.746,913.,447 11.,812,429,201 7,746,913,447 11,812,429.201
Interbank and money market items 232,891476 310,711,952 212,173,252 310,711,952
Long-term borrowings 5,232,034.456 5,163,07),118 5.232,031,456 5.163.07),118
Total Interest Expense 13,211,836,379 17.286,212,271 13,191, 118,155 17,286.212.271
Net income from interest and dividend 19.573,834,798 18,622,350,256 17,844,626.246 16,051,650,411
Reversal on Bad debt and doubtful accounts (Notes 3.6 26 and 35) (12,826,315337) (3.303,664,035) (10,607,913.648) (3,548,870.068)
Loss on debt restructuring (Notes 3.7 and 27) 13,460,603,293 4,226,605,282 11,195,062,389 3.548,870,068
Normalized provisions (Notes 3.8 and 12) - 800,000,000 800,000,000 800,000,000 §00,000,000
Net income from interest and dividend after bad debt
and doubtful accounts and loss on debt restructuring and normalized provisions 18,139,546,839 16,899,409,009 16.457,477.505 15,251,650.41)
Non-interest income
Gain (loss) on investments (Notes 3.4 and 7) },450,823,973 (34,605,862} 1,980,972.380 1,180,225,469
Share of profit (loss) from investments on equity method (Notes 3.4 and 35) 211,463,328 56,809,167 3,438,493.385 (668,142.717)
Fees and service income
Accep aval and g $97,986,827 567,948,151 597,986,827 567,948,151
Others 6.090,797,905 5.829,175,204 5.577,810.206 5,370,034,588
Gain on exchanges (Note 3.12) 1,822,435,939 984,688,580 1,822,435.939 984,688,580
Gain on transfer of financial assets (Notes 3.4 and 35) 2,578,129,356 - - -
Other income ’ 941,062,718 591,332,705 768,906,582 554,077,018
Tota! Non-interest Income 13.692.700,043 7.995.347.945 14,186.605.319 7.988,824.089
Non-interest expenscs
Personnel expenses §,246,423.216 5.300,393,569 5.041,290.289 5,120935,133
Premises and cquipment expenses (Notes 3.10 and 15) 3.269.866,629 3,425,042,840 3174955779 3,350,715.149
Taxes and duties 1,232.843,002 1,600,399,055 1.197,467.883 1,557.938,966
Fees and service expenses . 2.661,892,627 2.221,374,072 2,062,322.288 1,432.312.226
Directors’ remuneration 55,128,435 48,764,300 47,545,935 42,341,800
Loss on impairment of properties foreclosed (Notc 3.9} 429,498,050 758,866,768 429,498,050 557,872,623
Centributions to Financial Institutions Development Fund 2.693,797.430 2.732.417,103 2.693,797,430 2,732,417,103
Other expenses 1,363,554,550 2,175,038,936 1,241,235.906 1.876,307.413
Total Non-interest Expenses 16,953,003,939 18,262,296,643 15,888,113.560 16,670,840,413
Income before income tax 14,879,242,943 6,632,460,311 14,755,969,264 6,569,634,087
Income 1ax expense (Notes 3.11 and 28) 33,164,632 (75,019,067) (57.973.954) (114,749,799)
Net income before minority interests » 14.846,078,311 6,707,479,378 14,813,943.218 6.684.383,886
Minority interests in net income (32,135,099 (23,095,492) . -
Net income (Note 35) 14.813,943218 6,684,383,886 14,813,943,.218 6,684,383,886
Basic carnings per share (Note 3.17) 6.30 284 6.30 284
Number of the weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 2,353.010,147 2,352,547,372 2,353,010,117 2352547372

Pol.Gen. Pow Sarasin

Vice Chairman

Banthoon Lamsam

President




Beginning halance as of December 31, 2004

Appraisal surplus on assel revaluation

Revatustion surplus an invextments

Net gain (loxs) not recognised in the statement of income
Net income

Mincrity interests

Endlng balunce as of December 31, 2002

1ssued arxt paid-up share capital

Premium on share capilal

Appraisal surplus on asset revalualion

Revaluation deficit on inveiments

Net gain (loxs) not recagnised in the statement of income
Nl incamc

Minority inlerens

Ending halznce as of December 31, 2003 ’

KASTKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY; THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHARENOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED BECEMBER 31, 3003 ANB 2002

Buhi
Comsulidated
fxxued Premium on Prenmium on Aprraisal Revafwation Surplus Defivic Minvrity Totat
Paid-up Share Share Cupital Expirad Surplus o Asset {Delicidon Iinerexix
Cipiial Wairras Revaluation Invesiments
23.530,947,170 49,505,506,440 5,520,432.199 6,515901,788 1,524.476,723 {59,526,181,145) RGNV 27.440.232.102
- . (148,844,815) . 219,046,624 TOKLROY
- . 1. 248,256,739 - - 1.24K.280,739
- . - ( 148,844.815) 1,248.286,739 219,646,624 - LI19.08%, 848
- - - - - 6,684,343 80 6,684,383.880
- . - 1,709,748 1,704,748
23.531,947,170 49,505,506,440 5,520,432,199 6,367,116,973 2,773,143.462 (52,625150,678) 370,398,112 35.445,414.281
2,707,000 - - - - 970700
19,414,041 - - . [PEIERVTE)
- . . (135,272,559) . 135,272,559 - -
- - . (1,460,524,196) . {1,400,524,190)
Y TOT M 19,414,(Ki} - (133,272,559) ( 1,4601,524,195) 135,272,559 (1,431.403,196)
- 14,813,943.218 - 14813943218
- - - - (15,210,627) {15.201,027)
23,546,654,1T0 49,524,920,440 3,520,432,19% 6,231.844.444 1.312,639,266 (37,672,934.898} 385197088 4%,K12,752,676




Beginning balance ax of December 31, 2001
Appraisal surplus on asset revaluation
Revaluation sumius on i

Net gain (loss) not recognised in the statement of incame

Net income

Ending batance as of December 31, 2003

Lenued and paid-up share capital

Premium on share capital

Appraizal srplus on asset revaluation

Revalustion deficit on investments

Net gatn (Josx) not recognised in the statement of income
Net income

Ending halance a5 of December 31, 2003

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY: THAL FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGE IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2043 AND 2002

Haht
The Bunk
Isxued amd Premivm an Premium an Apprinsil Revitistion Sumplos breticit Total
Paid-up Share Share Capital Expired surphus o Assel (eticit) on
Capitat Wit Revalwation bvestinents
23,530,947, 170 49,505,306,440 5.520,432,199 6,515,901, 78% 1,524,876,723 (59,520,1K1,145) 27.071,843,138
- {148 %44,%13) . 219,646,624 801809
- - - - 1,248,2846,739 - 1,248,280,739
- - - (14%,844,815) 1,24%,286,739 219,640,624 [RIDRGE RS
. - - . 0,684,3K3,886 6,6%4,383,486
23,530,947,170 49,508,506,440 5,520,432,199 6,362,116973 2.773,163,462 {52,622,150,675) 35,075,015,569
9,707,000 . . - - . 9,700,083}
. 19.414,00K) - - . - 19,414,000
- - - (133.272,859) 135,272,559
- - - { 1.460,524,196) (1,461,524, 196}
9,707,000 19,414,000 (135272,559)  (1,461,524,196) 135272889 ()431,403,196)
. . - - 14.813,943,214 14,813,943.218
23,540,654,170 49,524.9201.440 5.520,402,19Y 6,231,844, 414 1,312,639.266 (37,672,934,8498) 48,457,588.591




KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Add(Less) Adjustments to reconcile net incomc o net

cash from operating activitics

Depreciation and amortization
Reversal on bad debt and doubtful accounts
Loss on debt restructuring
Nommalized provisions
Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring
interest income from amortization of revaluation aflowance tor investment in receivables
Loss on revaluation of investments
(Reversal) loss on impairment of investments
Amortization of excess of fair value of assets acquired

over cost of investment in subsidiary
Gain on disposal of sceuritics for investments
Amortization of premium and discount on debt instruments
Loss on impairment of forcclosed propertics
(Reversal) loss on impairment of other assets
Loss (gain) on disposal of premises and cquipment
Revesal on impairment of premiscs and cquipment
Gain on transfer of financial asscts
Share of (profit) loss from investments on equity method

Dividend incotne from subsidiaries and iated

Deferred income tax
Amortization of discount on dcbentures
Decrease in accrued interest reccivables
Decrease (incrense) in other accrued income
Decrease in accrued intcrest payables
{Decrease} increase in other accrued expenses
{Decrease) increase in other reserves
Minarity interests in net income
Net income from operations before changes in operating

ussets and liabilitics

) d.

) in operating assets
Interbank and money market items (asscts)
Securitics purchascd under resale agreements
avestment for trading
Loans
Properties foreclosed

Otber asscts

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
14,813,943.218 6,684,383 ,886 14.813,943.218 6,684,383.886
1.596,957.689 1,682,954,896 1,555.132,035 1,649.540.5 4

(12,826.315.337)
13,460,603.293
400,000,000
(2.024,009,160)
9,169,937
(545,357,305)

{11,163,399)
(830,650.326)
4,049,106,932
429,498,050
(133.483,894)
1,540,969
(22,177,607
(2,578,129,356)
(211,463,325)
28,573,946
(86.689,549)
4,158,787
439,107,022
278,074,824
(465,997,398)
(75,339.762)
(438,737,100

32,035,093

(3,303,664.035)
4,226,605.282
800,000,000

(633,156,381)
(148,622,052)
6,512,743
1,528,678,210

(12,536,993)
(1,433,481,785)
828,418,042
758,866,768
(22,435,983)
(2,869,319
(6,300,827
(56,809,167)
68,463,246
(113,941,742}
4,311,879
662,455,808
(93.803,161)
(655,109,244)
(245,921,825}
39,172,445

23,095,492

(10,607.913.648)
11,195,062,389
800.000,000
(668,293 809)
9,169,937

(1,209,495,760)

696.326,263)
4,046,305 536 .
429,498,050
43,816,009

(1,622,324)
(16,163,839)
(3,438,493,385)
206,878,073
(57,973,954}
4,158,787
449,290,841
286,181,465
(466,235,426)
§3.544,674

(438,747,100)

(3.548,870,068)
3,548,870.008
800,000,000

(426.737.0589)
6,512,743

(365,131,384)

(754,502,82))
$27,289,760
587.872,623

(137.327.612)

(5,153.569)
(3,749.222)
668,149.717
131,882,136
(114,749,799)
4311879
168.418.544
(90,782.577)
(655,109.244)
(376,165.125)

30.172.445

15,693,356,242

(10,030,590,944)

(13.310,000,000)
6,196,717,795

(48,600,669.253)
4,602,873,243

(4,349.819,188)

10,585,286,883

70,264,550,006
(14,700,000,000)
(4,504,363.108)
(8,305,359,021)

2,490,174,747

1,168,689,849

16.321,725,506

(9.824.042.413)
{13.316,000,000)
6,196,717,795
(46.225,130,399)
2,687,233,803
(4,510261,322)

8.608,134,805

69,822,708,604
{(14,700,000,000)
(4,504,363,108)
(3,409,541.206)

1,820,120.534

1,213,023,020




KASTKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR EACH OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

Baht
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
Increase {decrease) in operating liabilitics
Deposits 13,552,808.278 (13,138.563,225) 33,221.958.342 (12,845,375,050)
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) 443,478,939 (8,129,207,016) 1,202,478.939 (8.137,949,263)
Liabilitics payable on demand 3.618.877.474 (32,578.474) 3.618.877,474 (32,578,474}
Other liabilities (1,756,017,939) 21,323,249 (1,750.805.389) 3,133.271
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities (13.938,985,353) 35,719,950,890 (12,371,247.664) 37,846,313,133
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of available for sale investments 40,574,574,995 58.406,367,553 40,570,118,067 58,366,667,893
Proceeds from redemption of held to maturity debt instruments 54,311,470,265 26,490,498,362 53,485,130,265 25,620.498,362
Proceeds from disposal of general investments 3.526,537.522 2,960,734,151 1,861.356,923 311,996,727
Purchase of available for sale investments (53,555,470.937) (80,338.610,956) (53,541,323.527) (80,338.610,956)
Purchase of held to maturity debt instruments (30.918,003,788) (43,190,849.999) (30,000,027 837 (41.810,610,594)
Purchase of general invesiments (1,306,409.959) (909,508,353) (1,300.805.668) (909,508,350
Purchasc of invesiment in o subsidiary . £212.456.000) {212,480,000)
Proceeds from disposal of premiscs and equipment ' 17,732,000 18,686,154 2875349 17.601.533
Purchasc of premiscs and equipment {1,545.794.972) (1,510,200,676) (1.527,743,503) (1.482,637.719)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activitics _ 10,892,179,097 (38.072,883,764) 9,277.099,769 (40,224,603,107)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debentures 12,000,000,000 - 12,000,000,000 .
Increase in ordinary shares 9,707,000 - 9,707,000 -
Increase in premium on share capital 19,414,000 - 19,414,000 -
Dividend paid to minority interests (47,336,720) (25,375,586) . -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 11,981,784,280 (25,375.586) 12,029,121,000 -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents 8.034,978.024 (2,378,308,460) 8,934,973,105 2,378,289.974)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ycar (Notes 3.1 and 4) 9,764,205,922 12,142,514,382 9,764,122,408 12,142,412,382
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of the ycar (Notes 3.1 and 4) 18,699,183.946 9,764,205,922 18,699.095,513 9,764,122,408
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year
Interest expense 13,677.833,777 17,941,321,515 13,6587,353,580 17.941,321.515

Income tax 217,341,714 168,240,555 138,138,594 127,798,373
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
(FORMERLY: THAI FARMERS BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

GENERAL INFORMATION

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (“the Bank™) is a public company registered in the Kingdom of
Thailand with its head office located at 1 Soi Kasikornthai, Ratburana Road, Bangkok. The Bank’s main business is
commercial banking and the Bank conducts its businesses through a network of branches covering all parts of
Thailand and some major parts of the world. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank had total staffing o1'9,912

and 9,688 persons, respectively.

The Bank registered the change of i’s English name to “KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED” with
the Ministry of Commerce on April 8, 2003.

BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The consolidated and Bank-only financial statements are prepared in accordance with the regulations ol the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET), dated January 22, 2001, regarding the “Preparation and Filing of Financial Statements
and Reports Concerning the Financial Status and Results of Business Operations ol Listed Companies” (B.E. 2544),
and with the Bank of Thailand (BoT) directive dated May 10, 2001, prescribing the forms for balance sheets and the

profit and loss accounts for commercial banks; and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in

Thailand.

As required by Thai law and specific regulatory requirements, the Bank’s financial statements have been prepared in

the Thai language. They have been transfated into English here for the convenience of the reader.

The Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consist of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC

COMPANY LIMITED’s financial statements and the following subsidiaries’ financial statements:

% Sharcholding

2003 2002
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Phethai-AMC”) 99.99 99.99
Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Ploy-AMC™) 99.99 99.99
Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd. (“PLB™) 99.99 99.99
Kasikorn Factoring Co.,Ltd. (“KF”) 99.99 20.00

(In 2002 presented as investment in associated company,
which is not included in the consolidated financial statements)

Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Lid. (“K-ASSET”) 71.42 71.42




Phethai Asset Management Company Limited (formerly: “Thonburi Asset Management Company Limitcd™),
a company registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on Sepiember 24, 1999, was approved by the BoT on October 13,
1999 to also register as an asset management company under the Ministerial Regulation (B.E. 2541) issued with
regard to the provisions of the Asset Management Company Act (B.E. 2541). The Company is locatcd al 252/6
Muang Thai - Phatra Office Tower 1, Floor 14, Ratchadaphisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok and was established with

the objective of managing substandard assets transterred from the Bank.

Ploy Asset Management Company Limited (formerly: “Chantaburi Asset Management Company Limited”),
a company registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on September 30, 1999, was approved by the BoT on October 13,
1999 to also register as an asset management company under the Ministerial Regulation (B.E. 2541) issucd with regard
to the provisions of the Asset Management Company Act (B.E. 2541). The Company is located at 252/6 Muang Thai -
Phatra Office Tower 1, Floor S, Ratchadaphisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok and was established with the objective of
managing substandard assets purchased or transferred trom Phatra Thanakit Public Company Limited under the
Memorandum of Understanding {MQOU} between the Financial Institution Development Fund (FIDF), the Bank and
Phatra Thanakit Public Company Limited dated Septembﬁ 29, 1999. Under this MOU, the management of
substandard assets must be completed by December 31, 2004 and the resulting profit or loss is thereafter to be shared

among the aforementioned companies and the FIDF, in accordance with the conditions set forth in the MOU.

Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited is a company, which was registered in the Kingdom ol Thailand on -
November 18, 1999 and is located at 400/22 Kasikornbank Building, Floor 16, Phaholyothin Road, Sumscennai,
Phayathai, Bangkok. The Company was established to reccive, manage and sell properties that have been foreclosed

as well as the premises of Phatra Thanakit Public Company Limited.

Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited (formerly: “Thai Farmers Asset Management Company Limited”) is a
company,which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on March 18, 1992 and is located at 252/6 Muang Thai -
Phatra Office Tower 1, Floor 30 - 32, office No. 252/38 - 41, Ratchadaphisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok. The

Company's main businesses are assets and fund management.

Kasikorn Factoring Company Limited (“formerly: “Thai Farmers Heller Factoring Company Limited™), is a company,
which was registered in the Kingdom of Thailand on July 9, 1990, and is located at 252 Phatra Insurance Building,
Floor 1, Ratchadapisek Road, Huaykwang, Bangkok. The company was established to furnish commercial financial
services 1o businesses and provide service in the arca of factoring, finance leases, operaling leases and hire purchasc,
In March 2003, the Bank increased its sharcholding in this company from 20.00% to 99.99%. This caused 1o become

a subsidiary of the Bank and it is included in the consolidated financial statements in 2003.
Significant inter-company transactions and accounts are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements exclude the financial statements of subsidiaries whose financial statements are
not material to the Bank. The financial position and results of operations of subsidiaries, which are not included in the
consolidated financial statements, are presented as supplementary information in the accompanying Nole 7 to these

financial statements.

The consolidated and the Bank only financial statements include the accounts of all branches, domestic and outside

Thailand, and of the Bank’s International Banking Facility. Interoffice transactions have been eliminated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in hand and cash ilems in process of collection,

Recognition of Interest {ncome

Interest and discount income on loans are recognized on an accrual basis, except when interest payments are in arrears

for more than three months when, regardless of collateral, the cash basis is adopted.
Income from hire-purchase agreements is recognized by using the sum-ol-the digits method.

In compliance with the BoT regulation, the Bank reverses accrued interest receivable on loans for which repayments

are more than 3 months in arrears.

Starting in 2003 the assel management subsidiaries recognized inferest on investments in receivables and loans on a
cash basis, whereas previously they had recognized interest on investments in receivables using the effective interest

yield method (Note 35).

Lease income of a subsidiary recognized as follows:
Income under finance lease agreements is recognized on the basis of installment payments due using the cffective
yield method, calculated on the balance of the net invesiment in each installment. When installment payments are

in arrears for more than six months the cash basis is adopted.
Income under operating feasc agreements is recognized on the basis of cqual monthly installments. When
installment payments are in arrcars for more than six months the cash basis is adopted.

The other interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Recognition of Interest Expense

Interest expense is recognized on an accrual basis.

Investments

Investments in debt instruments and marketable equity sccurities classitied as trading investments are stated at fair

value, Unrealized gains or losses arising from their revaluation are reflected in the statement of income.

Investments in debt instruments or marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments are stated ar

fair value. Unrealized gains or losses arising from their revaluation are shown as a component of shareholders’ equity

and realized in the statement of income upon disposal.

Investments in debt instruments classified as held-to-marturity investments are stated at their amortized cosl, after
deduction of uny allowance for impairment. Premiums and discounts are amortized using the effective interest yield

method.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities that are not investments in subsidiaries or associated compunics arc

stated at cost, after deduction of allowance for impairment,




3.5

3.6

Investments in the receivables of Ploy Asset Management Company Limited were stated at cost, afier deduction of
allowance for impairment and revaluation allowance for debt restructuring, In the accounting period 2003, Ploy Asset
Management Company Limited accounted for the transfer of financial assets by recording the transter of investments
in receivables, which were restructured, to loans, at the fair value on the transfer date, which is based on the present
value of future cash collections calculated using discount rates equivalent to the market interest rate, adjusied by a risk
premium. The difference between the carrying value and fair value at that date was recognized as gain/loss on trans(er

of financial assets. (Note 35)

In the consolidated and the Bank only financial statements, investments in associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method, so as to incorporate the Bank’s share of profit (loss) and net assets in these companies in the

financial statements.

In the Bank only financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the equity methad, so us 1o

incorporate the Bank’s share of profit (loss) and net assets in these companics in the financial stalements,

An impairment review for investments is carried out when there is a lactor indicating that an investiment might be

impaired. Losses on impairment for all classifications of investments are charged to the statement ol income,

Interest income from investments is recognized on an accrual basis. Dividends are recognized as income on a cash

basis. Gains or losses on sales of securities are recognized in the statement of income upon disposal.

Cost of investments sold is calculated using the weighted average method.

Investments in marketable equity securities classitied as trading investments and available-for-sale investments are

stated at fair value based on the latest Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) bid prices as of the end of the year.

Investments in marketable unit trusts classitied as trading investments and available-for-sale investments arc stated at

fair value based on the net assets value as at the end of the year.

Investments in government securities and state enterprise securities guaranteed by the government, and classificd as
trading investments or available-for-sale investments, are stated at fair value based on the Thai Bond Dealing Cenier
Government Bond Yield Curve as of the end of the year. State enterprise sceurities not guarantecd by the government
and private debt instruments are stated at fair value based on bid prices from the Thui Bond Dealing Center as ol ihe
end of the year. If not available, the Government Bond Yield for the same period, adjusted by an appropriate risk

premium, is used.
Loans

Except in case of loans effected through overdraft agreements, loans represent only principal amounts.  Unearned

discounts received in advance are presented as a reduction in loans.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is determined through methods based on the BoT’s regulations, the Bank’s analysis

of each loan, and an appraisal of the financial standing of cach borrower, taking into consideration the Bank’s
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3.10

In accordance with the regulations of the BoT, the Bank and its asset management companies catcgorize their loun
portfolios into six categories and set minimum reserves based on these calegories (Note 10) The period that a loan is
past due is the principal criteria used in classitying a loan. The maximum collateral value used in calculating the
required allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the type of collateral and the date of the most recent valuation.
Allowance for normal and special mention loans are provided for based on the outstanding debt before deduction of

collateral value.
Allowance for doubtful accounts is charged as an expense in each accounting year.

Bad debts written off or recovered are recorded as charges or credits, respectively, to the allowance for doubtlul

accounts.
Troubled Debt Restructuring

The Bank and asset management subsidiaries record foreclosed assets acquired from troubled debt restructuring at fair
value up to the legal claim for the debt including interest receivable. Where restructuring a loan involves modilication
of its terms, the present value of the expected future cash collections is calculated by using discount rates cquivalent to
the market rates of interest at the time of restructuring. The difference between the present valuc of the luture cash
flows expected to be received and the outstanding balances of investment in loans is recorded in the revaluation
allowance for debt restructuring. This revaluation allowance lor debt restructuring is amortized o the sttement of

income according to the amounts reccived over the remaining period of the debt-restructuring contracts.
Normalized Provisioning

The Bank has begun to set aside normalized provisions above the current level of allowance for doubtful accounts to
accommodate unforeseen losses. The Bank will set aside normalized provisions up to approximately 0.5 percent of all
normal and non-performing loans. Normalized provisioning is being gradually accumulated on a quarterly basis

starting from the quarter ending June 30, 2002 and will continue until the target has been achieved.
Normalized provisioning is charged as an expense in cach accounting ycar,
Properties Foreclosed

Properties foreclosed are recorded at the lower of market value or the amount of the legal claim on the related deby,
including interest receivable. The market value is estimated by using the latest appraisal value after deduction of

estimated disposal expenses and holding cost.

Losses on impairment are charged to the statement of income. Gains or losses on disposal of properties foreclosed are

recorded as other income or expenses upon disposal.
Premises and Equipment and Depreciation

Land is stated at revalued cost. Buildings are stated at revalued cost less accumulated depreciation. The revaluation
surplus of land and buildings is shown as a component of sharcholders’ equity. When surpluses arising lrom the

revaluation of fixed assets are realized, the Bank transfers these directly to retained earnings.
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3.13

Depreciation on buildings acquired before July 1996 is computed using the declining-balance method al the annual
rate of 4 - 5% of cost. Depreciation on buildings acquired after July 1996 is computed using the straight-line method

on the acquisition cost at on annual rate of 3.33%.

Depreciation on the revalued incremental cost of buildings is compuied using the same method and the same rate us

the acquisition cost.

Depreciation on equipment is computed using the straight-line method on the acquisition cost at an annual rale of

12.5 - 20.0%. |

Gains or losses on disposal of premises and equipment are recorded as other income or expense upon disposal,
Income Tax and Deferred Income Tax

Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax cxpense.

Current tax expense is the amount of income tax payable in res‘pect of the taxable profit for a year.

Income tax recoverable in future resulting from temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability and its tax base value is rccorded as a deferred tax asset only (o the extent of the amount expected (o be

realized in the future.

All income tax payable in future resulting from temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or

liability and its tax base is recorded as a deferred tax liability,
Translation of Foreign Currencies

Assets, liabilities and forward contracts denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Assets, liabilities and forward contracts denominated in loreign

currencies at the end of the period are translated into Baht at the reference rates announced by the BoT on that date.

Exchange gains or losses on translation and on transactions in foreign currencies are included in revenues and

expenses for the year.
Derivatives
Forward Exchange Contracts

For hedging transactions, the difference between the forward rate and the spot rate on the date of entering into a

forward exchange contract is amortized to the statement of income over the period of the contract.

Trading transactions are carried at fair value using the Mark-to-Market approach for the period 2003, Gais or losses

resulting from changes in fair values are included in revenues and expenses lor the year,

Cross Currency Swaps and Inferest Rate Swaps
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The accounting for these derivative transactions depends on their purpose:
1. Hedging of the Bank’s Exposure to Financial Risks

Derivative contracts are vecorded off-balance sheet. Revenues, expenses and gains or losses resuliing [rom
changes in the fair values of contracts are recognized in accordance with the standard accounting treatment for

revenues, expenses, gains or losses on underlying assets, liabilities or other financial obligations as follows:

Where gains or losses on the underlying transactions are recorded based on fair value, losses or gains on

derivative transactions used as the hedge are recognized based on fair value throughout the corresponding

hedging period.
Where gains or fosses on the underlying transactions are recorded on an accrual basis, losses or guins on
derivative transactions used as a hedge are also recognized on an accrual basis over the period of the contracts,

2. Trading

Mark-to-market accounting is applied to trading transactions. Hence, traded derivative (ransactions are carried at
their fair values. Gains or losses resulting from changes in fair values are included in revenues and expenses.
Staff Retirement Fund
Staff members are entitled (o retirement pay upon termination of employment depending upon length of service and

other conditions. It is management’s policy to contribute an appropriate amount to the Fund each period.

Provident Fund

The Bank established a provident fund under the Provident Fund Act (B.E. 2530), and registered this Fund with the
Ministry of Finance on August 16, 1994.

According to the Fund’s Articles, every employee is entitled to apply for membership, and each member must
contribute to the Fund at the rate of 3% of their basic salary, while and the Bank contributes an additional 3.0 - 4.5%.
Upon termination ot employment employees are entitled (o receive this benefit except when terminated “without

compensation”.
Goodwill

Goodwill, representing the difference between the fair value of assets of subsidiaries acquired and the cost of
investments in subsidiaries at the time of acquisition, is amortized over a period of ten years. Goodwill is presented

under other assets in the consolidated financial statements.

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end

of year.

There is no diluting cffect on carnings per share that might result from an assumed exercise ol warrants, and

convertible preferred shares.




3.18 Use of Accounting Estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the Bank and
its subsidiaries to make estimates and assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asseis and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, Actual resulis may differ from these estimates,

4 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Non-cash items are as follows:

The Bank and its subsidiaries have provided for a revaluation surplus (deficit) on investments and have presented as
change in shareholders’ equity for each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 as follows:
(Million Baht)

Consolida and The Bank

2003 2002
Revaluation surplus (deficit) on investments (1,461) 1.248

For each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank recognized the realized portion of the appraised
surplus on asset revaluation amounting to Baht 135 million and Baht 220 million, respectively, by transferring these

amounts to retained earnings from appraisal surplus on asset revaluation.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank and its subsidiaries received foreclosed propertics
arising from debt settlement amounting to Baht 4,219 million and Baht 3,179 million, respectively on a consolidated

basis and Baht 2,819 million and Baht 1,520 million, respectively for the Bank only.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank transferred sub-quality assets to Thai Asscls
Management Corporation (TAMC) and in return received non-transferable promissory notes from TAMC, which has
been included in investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments amounting to Baht 66 million and Baht 797 million,

- respectively. (Note 8)
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INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS (ASSETS)

Interbank and money market items (assets) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of?

. Domestic

The BoT and FIDF
Commercial banks
Other banks
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies
Other financial institutions
Total Domestic ‘
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total
Foreign
US Dollar
Japanese Yen
Other currencies
Total Foreign
Add Accrued interest receivables
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total

Total Domestic and Foreign

{Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003 2002
Atcall Term Touwal Atcall Term Total
2,611 - 2,611 4,332 - 4,332
434 161 595 2,029 740 2,769
3 - 3 5 865 870
644 - 644 80 531 611
- - - 1 - |
3,692 161 3,853 6,447 2,136 8,583
(589) LI (589) 9 (545) (636)
3,103 161 3,264 _6,356 1,591 7,947
[,450 100,085 101,535 1,737 85,003 86,800
21 - 21 - -
110 | 111 96 S 101
1,581 100,086 101,667 1,833 85,068 86,901
- - - - | |
(8) 0] 9 (8) (1) ©))
L1573 100085 101,638 1.825 85.068 86,893




Domestic
The BoT and FIDF
Commercial banks
Other banks
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies
Other financial institutions
Total Domestic
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total _
. Eoreign
US Dollar
Japanese Yen
Other currencies
Total Foreign
Add Accrued interest receivables
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total

Total Domestic and Foreign

The Bank
2003
At call Term Total Atcall
2,611 . 2,611 4,332
242 75 317 1,962
3 . 3 5
644 . 644 80
- - - !
3,500 75 3,575 6,380
_(589) — (589) —n
2911 13 2986 £.289
1,450 100,085 101,535 1,737
21 - 21 -
110 1 RN 96
1,581 100,086 101,667 1,833
(8) ) 9 8
1573 100,085 101638 1.825
4484 100,160 104,644 8114

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

Securities purchased under resale agreements as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

Government Bonds and BoT Bonds
State enterprises Bonds
Total

(Million Baht)

2002
Term Total
R 4,332
740 2,702
865 8§70
531 61l
- 1
2,136 8,516
(545) (636)
1,591 7.880
85,063 86,800
-3 10l
85,068 86,901
i |
(4B] 10))]
85,068 86,893
806,659 24,773

(Million Baht)

Consolidated and The Bank

2003
31,710

3L710

O

002

17,400
00

1,000

18.400




7 INVESTMENTS

Investments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
Value
1. Current investments
1.1 Trading investments
1.1.1 Government and state enterprises ,
securities 805 l - 806
1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 369 - - 36y
Total 1,174 - 1,175
Add Allowance for revaluation | .
Total ‘ 1,175 1175
1.2 Available-for-sale investments
1.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 45,061 895 (164) 45,792
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,692 9 an 1,690
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 5,470 26 (1) 5,495
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic 556 161 (52) 665
1.2.5 Others 186 11 (45) 152
Total : 52,965 1,102 (273) 53,794
Add Allowance for revaluation 923 .
Less Allowance for impairment (94) -
Total 3,794 53,794
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments {
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises ‘
securities 4,895 27 . 4,922
1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments {‘ 257 i . 257
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments " 5370 4 - 5,374
Total 10,522 31 | 10,553

Total Current Investments - net 65,491 65,522




(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003
Cost Value/
Amorlized Cost Value  Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Malue
2, Long-term investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 22,917 594 (42) 23,469
2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 2,462 20 (15) 2,467
2.1.3 Fozeign debt instruments 11,833 100 (28) - 11,905
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities
- domestic 322 440 _{80) G682

Total 37,534 1,154 (165) 38,523
Add Allowance for revaluation 1,065
Less Allowancé for impairment _(76) _

Total 38,523 IN523

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state cnterprises

securities 21,246 729 (368) 21,607
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,919 | {948) 972
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments _3.544 _ 48 __(45) 3.54
Total 26,709 778 (1,361 26,126
Less Allowance for impairment (1.354) l
Total 25355 26126
2.3 Genera! investments
2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities
-domestic 3,667 - (1,264) 2,403
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities
-overseas 479 - (365) 114
2.3.3 Investments in receivables 5618 - (2.773) 2.845
Total 9,764 - (4,402) 5,362
Less Allowance for impairment (4.402) -
Total 5362 5,362
Total Long-term Investments - net 69,240 20,011




(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2002
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Value  Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
1. Current investments
| 1.1 Trading investments
1.1.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 6,978 10 - .6,9(\"\’
Add_ Allowance for revaluation 10 o .
Total 6,988 6.988
1.2 Available-for-sale investments
1.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 22,982 1,686 QD] 24,667
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 2,956 29 - 2,985
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 3,298 145 (303) S 3,140
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic 1,166 514 (477) 1,203
1.2.5 Others 213 S 70 150
Total 30,615 2,381 (851} 32,145
Add Allowance for revaluation 2,060 -
Less Allowance for impairment 530 -
Total 2,145 32,145
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises ,
securities 22,521 89 (m 22,609
1.3.2 Foreign debt instruments 11,045 21 - 11,066
Total 3,566 110 (n 33.67
Total Current Investments - net 12,699 12,808



(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2002
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain  Unrealized Loss Fair Valug
2. Long-term investments
2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 30,208 911 - 3LHY
2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 2,778 104 5 2.877
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 15,287 754 (6) 16,035
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities -

domestic 347 295 (162) _ 680

Total 48,820 2,064 (173) 50,711
Add Allowance for revaluation 2,046 -
Less Allowance for impairment (155) -

Total 30711 50,741

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 23,360 1,042 - 24.402
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,605 ! (1,180) 426
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 3035 387 —(80) 3.062

Total 28,020 1,130 (1,260) 27,890
Less Allowance for impairment 1253

Total 26,767 27.890

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equily securities

-domestic 3,422 - (1,381 2,041
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities

-overseas 419 - (323) 96
2.3.3 Investments in receivables 14.210 — (2.941) 264

Total 18,051 - (4,645) 13,406
Less Allowance for impairment ' (4.645) . -

Total 13,406 13,406

Total Long-term Investments - net 90,884 92,007




(Million Buht)
The Bank
2003

1. Current investments

1.1 Trading investments
1.1.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
1.1.2 Private enterprises debt insuruments
Total
Add Allowance for revaluation
Total
1.2 Available-for-sale investments
1.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic
1.2.5 Others
Total
Add. Allowance for revaluation
Less Allowance for impairment
Total
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and stale enterprises
securities
1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments
1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments
Total

Total Current Investments - net

Cost Value/
Amortized Cost

Vcllllg

45,061
1,692
5,470

556

Unrealized Gajn

895

9

52,965

Unrealized Loss

(164)
an
m
(52)
—(45)
(273)

Fair Valug

806
369
1,175

45,792
1,690
5,495

665

152

53,794




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Valug  Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
2. Long-term investments
2.1 Available-for-sale investments
2.1.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 22,917 594 (42) 23,469
2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 2,462 20 (15) ' 2,467
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 11,833 100 (28) 11,905
2.1.4 Marketable equity securities
- domestic —302 - _427 _(78) 651
Total . 37,514 1,141 (163) 38,492
Add Allowance for revaluation 1,054 -
Less Allowance for impairment 76 o
Total 38,492 38,492
2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
2.2,1 Government and state enlerprises
securities 21,065 724 (368) 21,421
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,804 | (926) 879
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments _3.544 _48 __(45) » _3.547
Total 26,413 773 (1,339) 25,847
Less Allowance for impairment (1.332) -
Total 25,081 25847
2.3 General investments
2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities
-domestic 3,466 - (1,196) 2,270
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities
-overseas 419 — 323 —26
Total 3,885 - (1,519) 2,366
Less Allowance for impairment (1,519) T
Total 2,366 ' 2366

Total Long-term Investments - net 65,939



(Million Baht)

The Bank
2002
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
1. Current investments
1.1 Trading investments
1.1.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 6,978 10 - 6,988
Add Allowance for revaluation _ 10 -
Total 6.988 6,988
1.2 Available-for-sale investments
1.2.1 Government and state enterprises
securities - 22,982 1,686 n 24,667
1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 2,956 29 - 2,985
1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 3,298 145 (303) 3,140
1.2.4 Marketable equity securities - domestic 1,166 514 477 1,203
1.2.5 Others 213 _ 1 70 150
Total 30,615 2,381 (851 32,145
Add_ Allowance for revaluation 2,060 -
Less Allowance for impairment 530
Total 32,145 32,143
1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments
1.3.1 Government and state enterprises
securities 22,132 88 (N 22,219
1.3.2 Foreign debt instruments 11,045 _21 — - 11,066
Total 33,177 109 (n 33,285
Total Current Investments - net 72,310 22,418




(Million Baht)
The Bank
2002
Cost Value/
Amortized Cost Valug Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Valug
2. Long-term investments
2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises

securities 30,208 911 - 31,119
2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 2,778 104 (5) - 2,877
2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 15,287 754 6) 16,035

2.1.4 Marketable equity securilies

- domestic 337 293 1s6) (674

Total 48,810 2,062 (167) 50,705
Add Allowance for revaluation 2,050 '
Less Allowance for impairment _(s3) —_—
Total 50,705 50,70

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Govermnment and state enterprises

securities 23,172 1,037 - 24,209
2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1,489 | (1,122) 368
2.2.3 Foreign debt instruments _3.055 87 __(80) 3,062

Total 27,716 1,125 (1,202) 27,639
Less Allowance for impairment (1.193) -

Total 26,521 27,639

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities

-domestic _ 3,161 - (1,271) 1,890
2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities
-overseas 41¢ —_— 323 96
Total 3,580 - (1,594) 1,986
Less Allowance for impairment _(1,594) : -
Total _ 1,986 1986

Total Long-term Investments - net 79,212 80,330




As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments, which are government or
state enterprises securities, included promissory notes from TAMC ot Baht 7,315 million and Baht 9,619 million,
respectively, and the right to receive promissory notes from TAMC of Baht 95 million and Baht 517 million,

respectively.

Gain (loss) on investments presented in the statement of income for each of the years ended December 31, 2003 und

2002 consisted of:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank

2003 2002 2003 © 2002

Gain on disposal of investments
Held for trading investments 206 197 206 197
Available-for-sale investments 2,170 1,561 2,168 1,553
General investments 403 73 403 6Y
Investments in receivables 132 _ 667 - -
Total 2912 2,498 2,777 1,819

Loss on disposal of investments
Held for trading investments (rn (130 {121 (131)
Available-for-sale investments (631} (622) (630) (622)
Held-to-maturity debt instruments - (43) - (45)
General investments (1,245) _(201) (1.245) 201
Total (1.997) _(999) {1.996) 1999)
Loss from revaluation ) (5) 9 (5)
(Loss) reversal on impairment _ 545 1,52 _1.209 _ 365
Total Gain (Loss) on Investments L43) N K5)) L1981 1,180

Revaluation surplus (deficit) on investments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

(Million Baht)

2003 2002 2003 2002
Revaluation surplus (deficit) on investments
Debt instruments 1,384 3,325 1,384 3,325
Equity securities 605 781 593 - 785
Share of revaluation surplus (deficit) in subsidiaries and
associated companies using the equity method - - 12 (4)
Less Deferred tax liabilities 676 1,33 676 1,333

Total

z
:
E




As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, a maturity analysis for debt instruments resulted in the following:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003 2002
Maturity Maturity
Over Over
| vearto S Over s | yearto 5 Over 3
1 year years years otal 1 year years years Touwl
1. Available-for-sale investments
1.1 Government and state
enterprise securities 29,628 34,272 4,078 67,978 2,598 36,135 14,457 53,190
1.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments 919 3,235 - 4,154 2,706 3,028 - 5,734
1.3 Foreign debt instruments 5,470 10,601 1,232 - 17,303 2,332 14,556 1,697 18,583
Total ‘ 36,017 48,108 5,310 89,435 7,636 53,719 16,154 77,509
Add(Less) Allowance for
revaluation 261 1,121 ! 1,383 (150) 2,138 1,337 3,325
Less Allowance for impairment - ' - - (10) - - (10)
Total 36,278 49,229 5311 0,818 2476 55,857 17491 80,824
2. Held-to-maturity debt
instruments
2.1 Government and state
enterprise securities 4,894 13,837 7,410 26,141 22,521 13,224 10,136 45,881
2.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments 257 226 1,693 2,176 583 22 1,000 1,605
2.3 Foreign debt instruments 2371 3,343 —_— 8914 11,04 3.055 - 14,100
Total 10,522 17,606 9,103 37,231 34,149 16,301 11,136 61,586
Less Allowance for impairment - (46)  (1,308) (1,354) __(583) (an (593  _(1.25%)
Total 10,522 17,560 _1.7935 _35.877 33,566 16,224 10,343 60,333

Total Debt Instruments 46,800 66,789 13,106 126,605 41042 72,081 28,034

:




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003 2002
Maturity Maturity
Over l Qver
Lyeartos Over S lyeartos Over s
Lyear years years Total | year years years Total
1. Available-for-sale investments
1.1 Government and state
enterprise securities 29,628 34,272 4,078 (67,978 2,598 36,135 1;1,457 33,190
1.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments 919 3,235 - 4,154 2,706 3,028 - 5,734
1.3 Foreign debt instruments 5,470 10,601 1,232 17.303 2.332 14,556 1,697 18,585
Total ' 36,017 48,108 5310 89,435 7,636 53,719 16,154 77,509
Add(Less)Allowance for
revaluation 261 1,121 1 1,383 (150) 2,138 1,337 3,325
Less Allowance for impairment - - - - (@10)] - - (19)
Total 36,278 9,22 5311 90,818 1,476 55,857 17,491 80,824
2. Held-to-maturity debt
instruments
2.1 Government and state
enterprise securities 4,410 13,655 7,410 25,475 22,132 13,036 10,136 45,304
2.2 Private enterprise debt
instruments 257 226 1,578 2,061 583 22 884 1,489
2.3 Foreign debt instruments 5371 3,543 - 8914 11,045 3,055 - 14,100
Total 10,038 17,424 8,988 36,450 33,760 16,113 11,020 60,893
Less Allowance for impairment - (46) (1,286) (1,332) (583) (77) (535)  (1,195)
Total 10038 17378 7,702 35018 33477 16036 10485 59,698

Total Debt Instruments 46,316 66,607 13,013 125936 40,653  1L.893 27,976 140,522




As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries in financial institutions thal
were closed on December 8, 1997, or investments in listed companics which meet SET’s criteria for delisting, and are
in default on debt instruments, or companies whose ability to continue as a going concern is uncertain, or unlisted
companies whose financial position and operating results are the same as companies which meet SET's criteria for

delisting are as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2003
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Investments in  Equity Debt  Investments in - Equity Debt Allowance [or

Receivables Securities Instruments Recejvables Securities Insiruments  Impajrment

1. Closed financial institutions - ! 131 - - - (132)
2. Listed companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting, and

are in defalt on debt instruments 330 296 204 9 361 - (576)
3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concern is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting - 1,108 568 - _43 93 (1,540)
Total =330 1405 203 —d 404 93 (2.248)




Consolidated

(Million Baht)

2002
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Investments in  Equity Debt  investments in - Equity Debt Allowance lor
Receivables Securities Instruments Receivables Securities Instrwments  Impairment
1. Closed financial institutions - 1 131 . - - (132)
2. Listed companies which meet |
SET’s criteria for delisting and are
in default on debt instruments 20 96 672 20 8 16 (744)
3. Companies whose ability to
continue as a going concern is
uncertain, or unlisted companies
whose financial poéi(ion and
operating results are the same as
companies which meet
SET’s criteria for delisting = 1,199 _785 = 35 392 (1,557
Total 20 L1296 L3688 20 43 408 (2.413)
(Mitlion Bah)
The Ban
2003
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Debt Equity Debt Allowanee for
1. Closed financial institutions 131 - - (132)
2. Listed companies which meet
SET’s criteria for delisting and are in
defauit on debt instruments 204 361 - (253)
3. Companies whose ability to
continue as a going concern is
uncertain, or unlisted companies
whose financial position and
operating results are the same as
companies which meet
SET’s criteria for delisting 452 _43 - 1,517
Total 187 404 —_ (1.904)




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2002
Cost Value / Book Value Fair Value
Equity Decbt Equity Debt Allowincee for
Securities Instruments Securities Instruments Lmpairmeny
1. Closed financial institutions | 131 - - (132)
2. Listed companies which meet
SET’s criteria for delisting and are in
default on debt instruments 96 . 672 8 6 (744)

3. Companies whose ability to

continue as a going concern is

uncertain, or unlisted companies

whose financial pogition and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SET’s criteria for delisting 1,199 _669 35 334 (1.499)
Total 1,296 350

2
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The recording of investments in subsidiaries and associated companies using the equity method in the financial

statements is based on financial information obtained from audited or reviewed financial statements.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries, that comprised more than 10%

of those companies’ shares and not investments in subsidiarics and associaled companies, classified by industry were

as follows:
(Mithion Baht)
Consolidated The Bank

2003 2002 2003 2002
Manufacturing and commerce 285 3t7 285 : 317
Property development and construction 1,274 1,094 1,274 1,094
Infrastructure and services 6 7 1 I
Others _420 - _570 _ 420 570
Total 1985 1,988 1,980 L1982

The financial position and results ot operations of the Bank’s subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements based on
the audited financial statements are set out below:
Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Thonburi Assel Management Company Limited)
Condensed Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at financial institutions 112,119 317,363
Investments in receivables — net 8,745,981 18,320, 1.06
Loans, receivables and accrued interest receivables — net 6,354,827 -
Properties foreclosed — net 365,641 383,867
Equipment — net 20,107 21,404
Other assets — net 30,794 13.370
Total Assets 15,629,469 19,056,110
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities )
Borrowings from financial institutions 11,850,000 16,850,000
Other liabilities 56,345 244,727
Sharcholders’ Equity 3,723,124 1,961,383

Total Liabilities and Shareholders™ Equity 15,629,469 19,056,110




Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

(Formerly: Thonburi Asset Management Company Limited)

Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Interest income

Interest expense

Net income from interest

Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal)

Loss on debt restructuring

Net income (expense) from interest alter bad debt and
doubtful accounts and loss on debt restructuring

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Net profit (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht)

Thousand Baht

2003
969,237
204,347
764,890
(37,941)

1,468.54

(665,710)
3,035,734
608,283
1761741

el

2002
1,614,682
390,514
1,224,168

677.219
546,949
{169,865)
1.003.599
£626.513)
—(104)




Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Thonburi Asset Management Company Limited)
Statements of Cash Flows

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit (loss) . 1,761,741 (626,3153)
Add (less) Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to net cash
from operating activities
Gain on investments in securities (414) (141)
Gain on transfer of financial assets : (2,734,406) -
(Reversal) loss on impairment of investments in receivables (6,661) 245200
Bad debt and doub‘tful account ((reversal) (37,941)
Loss on debt restructuring 1,468,542 677219
Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring (699,156) (206,419)
Depreciation and amortization 5,113 33,182
(Reversal) loss on impairment of properties foreclosed (11,731) 71,504
(Reversal) loss on impairment of other assets (170,126) 122,727
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payables (28,491) 10,413
{Decrease) increase in accrued expenses (145.617) 102,010
Net (loss) income from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities (599.147) 429,186
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Investments in receivables ' 1,621,808 3,317,786
Loans and receivables 3,350,442 -
Properties foreclosed 286,627 321,153
Other assets 152,702 (125,416)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Other liabilities (14,273) _22.23]
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities . 4,798,159 3,969,940
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of investmenls in securities 414 464
Purchases of equipment (3.81 7)“ (21.259)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities _(3.403) 20,795




Phethai Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Thonburi Asset Management Company Limited)
Statements of Cash Flows

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for repayment of borrowings from financial institutions (5,000,000
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (5,000,000
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (205,244)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 317,363
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year : 112,119
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Cash paid during the );ear
Interest expense 232,838
Income tax 298

2002

(3.750.,000)
3,750,000
199,145

118218
217,303

380,100
1,863




Ploy Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Chantaburi Asset Management Company Limited)
Condensed Balance Sheets v

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht__

2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at financial institutions 84,070 133,063
Investments — net 266,49) i()7,()02
Investments in receivables — net 2,845,030 11,268,894
Loans receivables and accrued interest receivables ~ net 5,510,410
Properties foreclosed - nel 2,595,212 2,780,831
Leasehold improvement and equipment — net 2,695 4,88 !
Other assets — net 33,538 19,887
Total Assets 11,337,446 14,434,358
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities
Borrowings from financial institutions 8,005,000 12,370,000
Other liabilities 26,818 66,037
Sharcholders’ Equity 3,305,628 1,998,521
Total Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity 11,337,446 14434558




Ploy Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Chantaburi Asset Management Company Limited)
Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003 2002

Interest income ' 1,008,476 1,673,509
Interest expense 145511 302,123
Net income from interest 862,965 1,371,386
Bad debt and doubtful accounts 764,042 -
Loss on debt restructuring 796,999 306,582
Net (expense) income from interest aficr bad debt and

doubtful acccl)ums and loss an debt restructuring (698,076) 64804
Non-interest income 2,187,113 105,135
Non-interest expense _ 196,800 283961
Net profit (loss) 1,292.237 _QLL?_)

Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht) =208 —(0.23)




Ploy Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Chantaburi Asset Management Company Limited)
Statements of Cash Flows

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

|

o
=
]

RS
=
=
IO

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit(loss) 1,292,237 (114,002)
Add (less) Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) to net cash

from operating activities

Gain from investments in securities (37,011) (11,681)
Reversal of loss on revalue of investment in securities ) - (52,303)
Gain on transfer of financial assets (2,578,129) -
Loss on impairment of investments in receivables (99,229 639,673
Bad debt and doubtiul accounts 764,042 -
Loss on debt restructuring 796,999 1,306,382
Interest income from amorlization ol revaluation allowance lor debt restructuring (656,559) {(148,6022)
Depreciation and amortizalion 1,910 6,137
Amortization of premiums on bond 12 16
Gain on disposal of equipment (1,009) (556)
(Reversal) loss on impairment of properties foreclosed : 415 79,604
Reversal of loss on impairment of other assets (7,174) (5,284)
Decrease in accrued interest income 6 -
{Decrease) increase in accrued interest payables (3,068) o ,704
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses (36,030) 20307

Net income from operations before changes in operating

assets and liabilities 235.040 1,721,575

(Increase) decrease in operating assets

Investments in receivables 1,530,934 1,968,492
Loans and receivables 1,204,777 -
Properties foreclosed 1,329,925 311,238
Prepaid income tax (13,892) (3,323)
Advance payments 7,467 5,709
Other assets (58) 3,935
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities

Deferred income 27 (1,260)
Other liabilities (148) 7799

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4294072 4,014,165




Ploy Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Chantaburi Asset Management Company Limited)
Statements of Cash Flows

For Each of'the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of invesiments 6,527 42910
Proceeds from disposal of equipment 1,291 C1,043
Purchases of investment (5,877) -
Purchases of equipment (6) (209)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities : 1.935 43,744
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for repayment of borrowing from financial institutions | (4,365.000) (4,010,000
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (4,365,000) (4,010,000)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash cquivalents (68,993) 47909
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 153,003 105,154
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 84,070 133,063
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year
Interest expense 148,579 300,419

Income tax 13,892 3,323




Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited
Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at financial institutions 23,233
Investments — net 299,803
Other current assets 7,042
Properties foreclosed — net 692,214
Premises and equipment — net 359,154
Other assets | , Il
Total Assets L381,557
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities 23,046
Shareholders’ equity 1,358,511
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity L381,557

Progress Land and Buildings Company Limited
Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

it~
-
108

127,946

6,718
854,701
381,358

129

10,099

1,360,753

L370.832

Thousand Baht

2003
Revenue 39,564
Expenses ‘ 41,806
Net loss (2,242)

Loss per share (Baht) L0.10




Kasikorn Factoring Company Limited
(Formerly: Thai Farmers Heller Factoring Company Limited)
Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht
2003 2002
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and deposits at financial institutions 39,350 19,551
Factoring receivables — net 1,835,874 1,730,818
Current portion of finance lease receivables — net | 146,432 191,272
Current portion of hire purchases receivables — net - 987
Other current assets 14,834 19,231
Non-Current Assets
Finance lease receivables — net 119,243 194,800
Installment receivables — net 32,200 -
Deferred tax assets 28,735 26,057
Other non-current assets 9,345 1 1v 629
Total Assets | 2,226,013 2,194,345
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Liabilities
Short-term loans from financial institutions 1,090,000 1,520,000
Accounts payables 1,308 3,107
Factoring payables 403,727 350,743
Current portion of long-term loan 100,000 -
Long term loan-net ' 300,000 -
Other liabilities . 84,397 75,285
Shareholders’ Equity 246,581 245210

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 2,226,013 ) 2,194,345




Kasikorn Factoring Company Limited
(Formerly: Thai Farmers Heller Factoring Company Limited)
Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht
2003 2002
Revenue 214,997 195,802
Expenses 153,626 - 144088
Net profit L1371 21714
Earnings per share (Baht) 3836 ‘ —32.32

Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Thai Farmers Asset Management Company Limited)
Condensed Balance Sheels

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents _ 295,259 75,900
Investments — net 373,978 584,648
Fee receivables : 73,241 62,748
Properties foreclosed — net 1,944 1,3‘73
Premises and equipment — net 175,640 185,614
Other assets 406,336 453,683
Total Assets 1,326,398 L1.363.966
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities 95,244 67,205
Shareholders’ Equity 1,231,154 1,296,761

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 1326398 . L363.966



Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited
(Formerly: Thai Farmers Asset Management Company Limited)
Condensed Statements of Income

For Each of the Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Thousand Baht

2003 2002
Revenue 488,748 430,057
Expenses 388,713 338,699
Net profit 100,035 91,358
Earnings per share (Baht) 368 336

The summary of financial position and results of operations of its subsidiaries, which are not included in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

(Million Bah{)
Balance Sheets
As of December 31,
2003 2002
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Reviewed)
Total Total Sharcholders®  Tolal Total Shareholders’
Assets  Liabilities Equity Assels  Liabilities Equity
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd. 24 2 22 37 4 33
Kanpai Co., Ltd. 105 44 61 80 34 46
Progress Plus Co., Ltd. 56 34 22 45 35 10
Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd. 19 7 12 13 4 9
Progress Services Co., Ltd. 23 6 17 9 4 5
Progress Management Co., Ltd. 18 8 10 15 6 9
Progress Storage Co., Ltd. 13 3 10 5 i 4
Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. 88 21 67 55 8 47
Progress Software Co., Ltd. 73 17 56 58 13 45
Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd. 113 _12 _41 145 - 31 114
332 214 38 462 140 322




(Million Baht except for Earnings (Loss) per Share)
Statements of Income
For Each of the Years Ended December 3 1

2003 2002
{Unaudited) (Audited)
(Reviewed)
Earnings Net Earnings
Net per Income (Loss) per
even Expenses Income Share(Baht) Revenue Expenses (Loss) Share(Baht)
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd. 51 47 4 43.84 40 42 - (2) (19.57)
Kanpai Co., Ltd. 155 140 15 73.54 120 109 11 53.45
Progress Plus Co., Ltd. 387 375 12 51.59 215 209 6 26.13
Progress Facilities Management Co., Ltd. 57 53 4 71.00 182 180 2 29.17
Progress Services Co., Ltd. 138 127 11 546.84 97 96 | 35.20
Progress Managemént Co., Ltd. 32 31 ) 9.53 25 24 | 12,12
Progress Storage Co., Ltd. 20 14 6 198.78 5 4 1 49.94
Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. 131 11 20 3,935.19 92 79 13 2,667,08
Progress Software Co., Ltd. i3 12 | 8.90 89 75 14 139.21
Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd. __89 74 15 1.50 97 _64 33 3.29
1073 984 B9 92 382 80




8

LOANS AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loans and accrued interest receivables as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

1. Classified by Type of Loans

Overdrafts
Loans
Bills
Others
Total

Add Accrued interest receivables

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Less Revaluation allowance for

~ debt restructuring
Less Normalized provisioning

Total

2. Classified by Maturity of Contracts

Within 1 year
Over 1 year

Total

3. Classified by Currencies and Residency of Borrowers

Baht
US Dollars

Other currencies

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
142,022 137,992 124,024 127,773
236,523 232,579 224,433 219,011
149,970 121,638 163,758 136,767
19403 13,994 17.875 12,974
547,918 506,203 530,090 496,525
—2971 —3410 —1.485 1934
550,889 509,613 531,575 498,459
(59,268) (76,950) (42,996) (54,920)
(6,666) (2,755) 4,721) (2,647)
~{(1.600) —(800) (1,600) —(800)
483,335 429,108 482,258 440,002
(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
359,150 340,254 363,400 343,386
191.739 169359 168,175 155,073
330,889 209,613 231,575 498,450
(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003 2002
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic -Foreign Total
529,593 12 529,605 488,150 726 488,876
16,945 1,958 18,903 17,028 1,778 18,806
2317 64 2,381 —1.807 124 —1.931
348,855 2034 330,889 306,983 2628 509613

Total




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003 2002
Domesti¢ Eoreign Total Domestic Eoreign Taotal
Baht 510,279 12 510,291 476,996 726 477,722
US Dollars 16,945 1,958 18,903 17,028 1,778 18,806
Qther currencies __ 2317 64 2,381 1,807 _124 1,931
Toral 520541 203¢  5ALS73 495831 2628 498459
4. Classified by Type of Business and Account Status
(Million Baht)
olidated
2003
Special Sub-
Agricultural and mining 15,100 727 130 171 2,971 19,099
Manufacturing and commerce 267,235 6,902 1,598 3,417 44,237 323,389
Property development and

construction 25,416 1,495 278 754 12,661 40,604
Infrastructure and services 50,550 1,971 378 1,325 8,409 62,633
Housing loans 43,757 2,210 722 1,016 11,760 59,465
Others 40,378 496 209 173 2,870 44,126
442,430 13,801 315 £.856 82,908 549,316

Kasikom Factoring Co.,Ltd. R 1,752
Unearned discounts received (179

in advance 550,886

Total




Agricultural and mining

Manufacturing and commerce

Property development and
construction

Infrastructure and services

Housing loans

Others

Unearned discounts received
in advance

Total

Agricultural and mining

Manufacturing and commerce

Property development and
construction

Infrastructure and services

Housing loans

Others

Unearned discounts received

in advance

Total

Normal
12,428
229,116

22,620
50,308
26,586
31158
372.216

Noymal
15,081
261,136

23,303
48,160
43,163
60,617
451,460

Congolidated
2002
Special Sub-
Mention  Standard Doubtful
462 207 449
7,271 2,525 7,187
1,489 442 1,481
1,271 610 1,565
1,357 548 1,023
565 - 166 327
12415 4,408 12,032
The Bank
2003
Special Sub-
Mention Standard Doubtful
721 130 171
6,273 1,598 3,417
1,169 278 754
1,558 378 1,325
2,056 722 1,016
459 209 173
12,236 3315 0.856

(Million Baht)

Loss Total
3,434 16,980
59,611 305,710
17,085 43,117
9,916 63,670
12,996 42,510
5,585 37.80¢
108,627 509,788
_19)
209,613
(Million Baht)
0ss Total
2,541 18,644
30,240 302,664
8,634 34,138
6,212 57,633
8,598 55,555
1.662 63,120
57.887 531,754
7o

231575




5.

Agricultural and mining

Manufacturing and commerces

Property development and
construction

Infrastructure and services

Housing loans

Others

Unearned discounts received
in advance

Total

Classified by Account Status

Normal

Special Mention
Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Loss

Allowance established in

excess of BOT regulations

Kasikorn Factoring Co.,Ltd.

Unearned discounts received
in advance

Total

(Mitlion Baht)

The Bank
2002
Special Sub-
12,376 457 207 449 2,929 16,418
227,099 6,859 2,525 7,187 39,253 282,923
22,062 1,355 442 1,481 12,262 37,602
49,113 1,141 610 1,565 7,430 59,859
25,758 1,238 548 1,023 9,225 37,792
_i&éﬁi —406 - 166 —327 4.480 64,040
395,069 11,456 4,498 12,032 15,579 498,634
(75
(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003
Loans and Qutstanding Debt % Used for
Accrued Interest after Deduction of Providing Providing
Receivables Collateral Value The Provision Amounts
442,436 152,758 ) 4,424
13,801 2,214 2 276
3,315 650 20 130
6,856 1,856 50 928
82,908 34,891 100 34,891
- - 18.545
549,316 192,369 59,194
1,752 1,698 74
— (179 — 179 -
550,889 193888 59,268




Normal

Special Mention
Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Loss

Allowance established in

excess of BOT regulations

Unearned discounts received
in advance

Total

Normal

Special Mention
Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Loss

Allowance established in

excess of BOT regulations

Unearned discounts received
in advance

Total

onsolidated
2002
Loans and Outstanding Debt % Used for
Accrued Interest after Deduction of Providing
Receivables Collateral Valug The Provision
372,216 97,040 |
12,415 1,776 2
4,498 1,272 20
12,032 3,988 50
108,627 43,983 100
509,788 148,059
(175 —(175)
209613 147,884
The Bank
2003
Loans and Outstanding Debt % Used for
Accrued Interest after Deduction of Providing
Receivables Collateral Value The Provisjon
451,460 167,041 1
12,236 1,900 2
3,315 650 20
6,856 1,856 50
57,887 23,563 100
531,754 195,010
— (179 — (179
231,575 194,831

(Million Baht)

Providing

Amounts

(Million Baht)

Providing
Amounts
4,515
245
130
928




Normal

Special Mention
Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Loss

Allowance established in

excess of BOT regulations

Unearned discounts received
in advance

Total

Non-performing loans (NPL)

Loans and
Accrued Interest
Receivables

395,069

11,456

4,498
12,032
75,579

498,634

(175)
428,459

he

n

2002

Outstanding Debt

% Used for

after Deduction of Providing
Q)I ateral Value The Provision
124,640 l‘
1,667 2
1,272 20
3,988 50
28,606 100
160,173
(175)
159,998

(Million Baht)

Providing
Amoun(s
3,950

[Ne)
[N

2¢

[
wn

5
1,994
28,606

19,886
24,920

According to the BoT’s directive dated January 16, 2003, effective for tinancial statements ended December 31, 2002,

non-performing loans (NPL) was redefined as sub-quality loans, being outstanding loans of sub-standard, doubtful and

loss loan accounts in accordance with the BoT’s guidelines.

previously been written - off.

This included fully - provisioned loans which had

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002. non-performing loans (including financial institutions) based on the above

directive can be summarized as follows:

Non-performing loans

Total loans used for NPL ratio

. (1)
calculation

Percentage of total loans

The Bank
68,316

531,903
12.84

Phethai - AMC
(Qriginal principal)
22,610

28,908
78.21

2003
1,393
8,307
16.77

(Million Baht)

The Bank and

AMC
92,319

547,979

16.85




Non-performing loans

Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation "

Percentage of total loans

2002

Phethai - AMC

(Million Baht)

The Bank and

The Bank (Qriginal principals) AMC
92,482 31,581 124,063
500,890 38,898 510,568
18.46 81.19 24.30

w . , . .
Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and loans

to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, non-accrual loans (including financial institutions) were as follows:

Non-accrual loans
Total loans used for ratio
calculation

Percentage of total loans

Non-accrual loans

Percentage of total loans

2003
Phethai - AMC
The Bank  (Qriginal principals) Yloy - AMC
112,532 28,908 8,307
531,903 28,908 8,307
21.16 100.00 100.00
2002
Phethai - AMC
The Bank (QOriginal pringipals)
146,714 38,898
29.29 100.00

(Million Baht)

Kasikorn The Bank and
Factoring Subsidiarics
61 149,808
1,752 549,731
348 27.25

{Million Baht)

The Bank and
185,612
36.35

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, loans to listed companies that meet SET’s criteria for delisting were as follows:

Listed companies which
meet SET’s

criteria for delisting

Loans and
Accrued
Interest

Receivables

2003

Collateral

Yalue

B

Consolidated

Allowance Loans and
for Accrued
Doubtful Interest

Accounts Receivables
413 L8135

(Million Baht)

2002
Allowance
for
Collateral Doubtful
Value Accounts




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003 2002
Loans and Allowance Loans and Allowance
Accrued for Accrued for
Interest Collateral Doubtful Interest Collateral Doubtful

Recejvables Value Accoun(s Receivables Value Accounts
Listed companies

meet SET’s

criteria for delisting 1,454 469 92 1,834 1,073

Z

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the outstanding balances of loans to the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries were

as follows:
(Million Bahy)
2003
Type of loans Maturity Interest rafe Amount
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 11,850
Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 8,005
Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. Bills 1-6 Months Money Market Rate + 885
2.20%-2.50%
Loans 3 Years Fixed Rate 400
(Million Baht)
2002
Type of loans Maturity 1teres Amount
Phethai Asset Management Co., Lid. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 16,850

Ploy Asset Management Co., Lid. Bills 3 Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 12,370




Transferring of Sub-Standard Quality Assets to Thai Assets Management Corporation (TAMC)

In accordance with the Emergency Decree on the Thai Assets Management Corporation B.E. 2544, on October 12, 2001, the
Bank signed an Asset Transfer Agreement with TAMC to transfer eligible sub-standard quality assets outstanding as ol
December 31, 2000 to TAMC. All rights and duties associated with each transferred sub-standard quality asset were
“transferred to TAMC at a price determined by the appraised value of the underlying collateral assets, provided that the price
did not exceed the book value of credils extended, less existing provisions outslanding, as required by law on the ransler date.
TAMC has 180 days from the date of each transfer to examine any transferred assets, TAMC will then quote the transter
price within seven days after the end of the examination period. After confirming the price, TAMC will issue non-
transferable 10-year callable promissory notes guaranteed by FIDF. The notes bear interest equal to the weighted average of’
the deposit rates of five major banks, and are paid at the end of each year by means of a non-transferable, extendable
1-year promissory note, guaranteed by FIDF. The rights to these notes and the received notes are included in investments in

held-to-maturity debt instruments.

In accordance with the Emergency Decree and the Asset Transfer Agreement, TAMC and the Bank will share jointly the
profits and responsibility for any losses on transferred assets, which are payable on the fifth and the tenth anniversaries ol the .
transfers, starting from July 1, 2001. In the case of losses, the Bank will first be responsible for any loss, not exceeding 20%
of the transfer price. The second portion of losses, again not exceeding 20% of the transter price, will be equally shared by
TAMC and the Bank. Any remaining loss would then be absorbed by TAMC. In addition, expenses of TAMC are included
in the calculation the gain or loss sharing. In the case of profit, the first portion of profits up to 20% of transfer price is to be
shared equally by TAMC and the Bank. Should there be any profit over and above this, the Bank is entitled to the remainder

up to the gross book value of the assets, less the transter price and the Bank’s share in the tirst portion of the profits.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank transferred to TAMC sub-quality assets relating to 12
borrowers and 45 borrowers with a gross book value (as of their l‘re.msfer dates) of Baht 124 million and Baht 2,215 million,
respectively (up to December 31, 2003 totaling Baht 14,510 million). The estimated total transfer price was Baht 66 million
and Baht 797 million (up to December 31, 2003 totaling Baht 10,175 million). As of December 31, 2003, the Bank received
promissory notes from TAMC of Baht 10,080 million and TAMC is examining the remaining assets of Baht 95 million and

will confirm the transfer price in order to issue notes to the Bank within the aforementioned timetrame.




9 TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURING

During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank and its subsidiaries (Phethai - AMC and Ploy - AMC)

engaged in debt restructuring contracts as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
Total Total Total Total
Outstanding Outstanding Quistanding Outstanding
Debt Betore Debt After Debt Before . Debt After
Cases Restructuring Cases Restructuring Cases Restructuring  Cases  Restructuring
Debt restructuring contracts
that incurred losses 6,378 46,089 4,259 - 20,436 5,484 32,678 3,643 13,321

Debt restructuring contracts

that incurred no losses 18,053 35765 23,037 49,024 16,609 3L 20,440 407117
Total 24431  8L854 27,296 69,460 22093 63,789 24,083 34,038

Losses on debt restructuring for each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003
The Qutstanding Debt Transferred Assets

Before Atter Loss on Debt
Types of Restructuring Cases  Restructuring  Resfructuring Types Fair Value  Restructuring

Transfers of assets 5,299 23,473 - Cash, land, 15,322 8,151

premises
and investments
Changes of repayment conditions 816 16,463 14,885 - - 3,203
Debt restructuring in various forms 263 6,153 3,812 Cash, land, 1,809 2,401

premises
and investments

Total 6378 46,089 18,697 17,131 13,255




es of turin

Transfers of assets

Changes of repayment conditions

Debt restructuring in various forms

Total

T I

Transfers of assets

Changes of repayment conditions

Debt restructuring in various forms

Total

Consolidated
2002

he standin bt Transterred Assets

(Million Baht)

Before After lLoss on Debt
Cases Restructuring  Restructuring Types Fair Value  Restrugtyring
3,655 9,998 - Cash, land, 6,228 3,770
premises
and investments
510 5,536 5,029 - - 1,201
94 4,902 2,504 Cash, land, 1,380 1,655
premises
_ — — and investments R
4259 20436 1533 1,608 0.020
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2003
The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets
Before After Loss on Debt
5,027 20,709 - Cash, land, 13,234 7,475
premises
and investments
213 6,557 5,891 - - 1,918
244 5,412 3,770 Cash, land, 1,372 2,110
premises
. and investments
5484 32,618 9,661 14,606 LLS03




estructur

Transfers of assets

Changes of repayment conditions

Debt restructuring in various forms

Total

The Qutstanding Debt

Before

Cases Restructuring
3,369 8,576
220 2,331
54 2,414
3,643 13321

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2002
Transferred Assels
After Loss on Debt
Restructuring Types Fair Value  Restrueturing
- Cash, land, 5,137 3,439
premises
and investments
2,275 - - 325
1,381 Cash, land, 722 877
premises
- and investments -
3,636 3,839 4,041

The Bank and its subsidiaries measure cxpected recoverable amounts of restructured loans by changing repayment

conditions using the present value of future cash flows discounted by the market rate.

The terms of debt restructuring agreements with debts which were restructured by changing the repayment conditions

and restructured in various other ways and resuited in losses on debt restructuring during the years ended December

31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003
The Outstanding Debt
Terms of debt Before After
restructuring agreements  Cases  Restructuring  Restructurin

Less than 5 years 415 5,468 3,962
5to 10 years 27 2,765 1,976
Over 10 years _1s 3736 3,723
Total 457 11,969 2.661

The Bank
End of
Year Cases
2,692 203
1,974 37
3,695 34
8,361 274

2002

(Million Baht)

The Outstanding Debt

Before

After

End of

Restructuring Restructuring Year

1,789

834
610

2212

3,036

556

o o

rv&m

fg TN
~J

!




Terms of debt

restructuring agreements  Cases

Less than 5 years 223 3,520 2,847
510 10 years 75 1,187 856
Over 10 years 251 1,466 1,197

Total 349 6,173 4,900

2003
The Outstanding Debt
Terms of debt Before After
restructuring agreements  Cases  Resfructuring Resiructuring

Less than S years 41 1,569 1,230
5to 10 years 13 1,379 1,374
Over 10 years 19 1,526 1,526

Total k] 4474 4,136

Th

Before

Restructuring Restructuring

S

After

Phethai -~ AMC
End of
Year Cases
1,311 133
761 58
1,082 87
3124 228
P

End of

Year
854

1,289

1,498

3,641

Q(]SQ§

The Qut

Before

1,127

912
366
2405

Th

Before

1,979
1,141
168
3,288

(Million Bahv)

Restructuring Restructuring

Restructuring Restrucluring

2002
nding Debt
After End of
&07 306
621 400
_343 229
LI71 PR
(Million Baht)
2002
anding Debt
Alter End of
1,269 889
672 505
_165 140
2,106 L.240

The Bank and its subsidiaries recognized interest income from debt restructuring for each of the years ended

December 31, 2003 and 2002 as follows:

(Million Baht)
Counsolidate The Bank
2003 2002 2003 - 2002
Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 2,858 1481 1320 986

As of De;:ember 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank had commitments to extend additional loans to these borrowers as
follows:
(Million Baht)
onsolidated and The Bank
2003 2002

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 117 109



As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank and its subsidiaries had oulstanding balances on debiors which were

restructured during the year as follows:

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses

Total

Consolidated

2003 2002
15,126 5,711
22.702 30,716
37,828 30,427

(Million Baht)
The Bank
2003 2002
8,361 3,236
21,237 28270
29,598 21,306

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances relating (o all restructuring

debtors which had been performing in accordance with debt restructuring agreements as follows:

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses

Total

10 ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Consolidated
2003 2002
28,354 20,546
37.298 _81.698
85,652 102.244

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the years were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year

Transferred from investments in
receivables

Doubtful accounts (reversal)

Bad debts recovered

Bad debts written off

Allowance for loans transferred to
TAMC

Others

Balance at ended of the year

Kasikom Factoring Co.,Ltd

Balance at ended of the year

Normal
3,722

39
663

Special
Men(i
248

20

Consolidated
2003
Sub-
Standard  Doubtful Loss
255 1,994 43,983
- - 575
(125) (1,066) (4,030)
- - 1,795
- - (8,259)
- - (60)
- - 887
130 =228 34,801

(Miltion Baht)

The Bank
2003 2002
20,940 18,128
50941 73,877
2183 92,005

(Million Baht)

Allowances
Established in

Excess of BoT

Regulations Total

26,748 76,950
44 666
(8,247 (12,785)

- 1,795
- (8,259)
- (60)
18,545 59,194
74

32,268




(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2002
Allowances
Established in
Special Sub- Excess of BoT
Normal Mention Standar Doubttul Loss Regulations Total
Balance at beginning of the year 3,562 223 685 3,411 17,798 25,647 51,326
Doubtful accounts (reversal) 160 25 (430) (1,417) (2,920) 1,101 . (3,481)
Bad debts recovered - - - - 10,525 - 10,525
Bad debts written off - - - - (4,570} - (4,570)
Reversal based on BoT policy - - - - 25,686 - 25,686
Allowances for loans transferred to
TAMC ' - - - - (1,418) - (1,418)
Others - - . 118 e (,118)
Balance at ended of the year 3,722 248 255 1,994 43,983 20,748 16,950 '
(Million Baht)
he Bank
2003
Allowances
Established in
Special Sub- Excess of BoT
ormal Mention Standard  Doubtfi Loss Regulations Total
Balance at beginning of the year 3,950 229 255 1,994 28,606 19,886 54,920
Doubtful accounts (reversal) 565 16 (125) (1,066) (3,679) (6,271)  {10,560)
Bad debt recovered - - - - 1,795 - 1,795
Bad debt written off - - - - (3,039) - (3,039)
Allowance for loans transferred to
TAMC - - - - (60) - (60)
Others - - - - _{60) - (60
Balance at ended of the year 4,515 245 130 2928 23,503 13,615 42,996




Balance at beginning of the year 3,828
Doubtful accounts (reversals) 122
Bad debts recovered -
Bad debts written off -
Reversal based on BoT policy -
Allowances for loans sol‘d to

TAMC -
Others -
Balance at ended of the year 3,950

204

229

25

Sub-
Standard
647
(392)

255

11 REVALUATION ALLOWANCE FOR DEBT RESTRUCTURING

(Million Baht)

The movements in the revaluation allowance for debt restructuring during the year were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Addition (reversal)

Change of classification
Amortization

Balance at end of the year

12 NORMALIZED PROVISIONING

2003
2,755
5,130

887

The movements in the normalized provisioning during the year were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Addition

Balance at end of the year

The Bank
2002
Allowances
Established in
Excess of BoT
Doubtful Loss Regulations Total
3,410 16,912 25,001
(1,416) (5,039) 2,974 {3,726)
- 10,525 - 10,525
- {1,193) - (1,193)
- 25,686 - 25,686
- (1,418) - (1,418)
—_— 45 - 45
L994 28,600 19,880 34,920
(Miilion Baht)
The Bank
2002 2003 2002
3,781 2,647 3,699
(393) 2,825 (625)
{633) 50 42
2,155 4721 2,647
(Million Baht)
onsoli and The Banl
2003 2002
800 -
800 800
1.600 500
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PROPERTIES FORECLOSED

Properties foreclosed as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

Consolida
2003
Beginning

Type of Foreclosed Properties Balance itio Disposal
1. Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 18,063 4,326 (5,352)

1.2 Movable assets 26 2 -

Total 18,089 4,328 (5,352)
2. Others _1.442 . 9 363
Total Foreclosed Properties 19,531 4,418 (5,715)
Less Allowances for impairment 444 (434} 1161
Total Foreclosed Properties ~ net 15,087 3,984 (4.554)
Consolidated
2002

T Foreclosed P rties Balance itio Disposal
1. Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets 17,847 3,232 (3,016)

1.2 Movable assets — 26 —_ -

Total 17,873 3,232 (3,016)

2. Others 1,100 _377 _ 35
Total Foreclosed Properties 18,973 3,609 (3,051
Less Allowances for impairment 4,121) (838)

515
Total Foreclosed Properties — net 14,852 2771 (2,536)

(Million Baht)

Ending

Balance

(Million Baht)

Ending

Balance

18,063




For: operties

1. Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets
1.2 Movable assets
Total
2. Others
Total Foreclosed Properties
Less Allowances for impairment

Total Foreclosed Properties - net

T f Foreclgsed Properti

1. Assets acquired from debt repayment

1.1 Immovable assets
1.2 Movable assets
Total
2. Others
Total Foreclosed Properties
Less Allowances for impairment

Total Foreclosed Properties - net

Beginning

Balance

14,701

Beginnin

Balanc

15,512
— 26
15,538
—5
15,544
(3.910)
11634

The Bank
2003
Addition Disposal
2,895 (3,705)
2 -
2,897 (3,705)
90 (183
2,987 (3,888)
(446) 1138
2.54] 2.250)
The Bank
2002
Addition Disposal
1,559 (2,370)
1,559 (2,370
375 (5)
1,934 (2,375)
630 506
1,304 (1,869)

(Million Baht)

Ending

Balance

13,891

(Million Baht)

Ending

Balance
14,701

14,727

—_376
15,103
(4.034)
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CLASSIFIED ASSETS

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries classified as investments, loans and accrued

interest receivable (including financial institutions), or properties foreciosed or other assets were categorized by

quality in compliance with the BoT regulations, taking into account analyses of each loan and appraisal of the

financial standing of each borrower, as follows:

[nvestments
Normal -
Special Mention -
Sub-§tandard -
Doubtful -
Loss 5,648
Total 5,648
Investments
Normal -
Special Mention -
Sub-Standard -
Doubtful -
Loss 6,957
| Total 6,957

Consolidated

2003
Loans and Accrued  Properties
Interest Receivables Foreclosed
445,174 -
13,800 -
3,315 -
6,883 -
83529 1582
552,701 L1582
Consolidated
2002
Loans and Accrued  Properties
Interest Receivables  Foreclosed
375,755 -
12,415 -
4,498 -
12,032 -
109.280 2,024
213,980 2,024

Other Assets
21

Other Assets
9

1553
Ls62

(Miltion Baht)

Total
© 445,195
13,800
3315
6,883
92,179
501372

(Million Baht)

Tota
375,764
12,415
4,498
12,032
119.814
324,523




Normal
Special Mention
Sub-Standard
Doubtful

Loss

Total

Normal

Special Mention
Sub-Standard
Doubtful

Loss

Total

The Bank
2003
Loans and Accrued Properties
Investments Interest Receivables Foreclosed

- 452,506 -

- 12,236 -

- 3,315 -

- 6,856 -
3.664 38474 1360
3.664 533.387 1360

The Bank
2002
Loans and Accrued Properties
Investments  Interest Receivables Foreclosed

- 398,652 -

- 11,456 -

- 4,498 -

- 12,032 -

4,843 76,188 1.829
4,843 202,826 1829

ther Asset

1339
L339

Other Assets

(Million Baht)

Total
452,506
12,236
3315
6,856
64,837
339.750

(Million Baht)

Tota]
398,652
11,456
4,498
12,032
84,154
310,792
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

Allowance for impairment of investments
Allowance for impairment of buildings

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Adjustment from operating leases to financial leases

Total

Deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of*

Appraisal surplus
Revaluation surplus on investments

Total

DEPOSITS

Deposits as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 were classified as follows:

1. Classified by Type of Deposits

Consolidaled
2003 2002

Current 36,048 20,499
Savings 339,873 . 281,959
Term

- Less than 6 months 238,488 273,333

- 6 months and less than | year 5,679 5,903

- 1 year and over 1 year _64.858 _63.699

Total 684,946 651,393

(Million Baht)
Consolidated

2003 2002
13 13

1 ]
22
1 —_
43 -4

(Million Baht)

Consolidated and The B
2003
2,671
_616
3347

K

3

!\)
~J
N
o

bk

(Million Baht)

The Bar

2003
36,292
339,905

238,488

5,679
_64.858
685222

2002
26,978
282,087

273,333

5,903
-63.699
652.000




2.

Classified by Maturity of Contracts

(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
Within 1 year 676,843 638,654 677,119 639,261
Over 1 year _ 8,103 _12.739 _ 8,103 12,73
“Total 684,946 © 651393 685,222 652,000
Classified by Currencies and Residency of Depositors
(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003 2002
Domestic Eoreign Tota) Domestic Foreign Towal
Baht 668,878 13,507 682,385 637,385 11,756 649,14)
US Dollars 1,766 295 2,061 1,678 177 1,855
Other currencies 423 77 500 324 73 _ 397
Total 671,067 13,879 684,946 639,387 12.006 651393
(Millien Baht)
The Bank
2003 2002
Domestic  Foreign Total Domestic oreig Total
Baht 669,154 13,507 682,661 637,992 11,756 649,748
US Dollars 1,766 295 2,061 1,678 177 1,855
Other currencies 423 11 500 324 73 397
Total 671343 13879 683222 639994 12006 652000




18 INTERBANK AND MONEY MARKET ITEMS (LIABILITIES)

Interbank and money market items (liabilities) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
200 2002
Atcall Temm Total Alcall Term Tatal
1. Domestic
The BoT and FIDF - 68 68 - 28 28
Commercial banks 369 205 574 444 - ’ 444
Other banks 201 - 201 172 - 172
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies 3,535 81 3,616 878 97 975
Other financial institutions 617 1,036 1,653 1.577 2.053 3.630
Total Domestic 4722 1.390 6,112 3071 2.178 5,249
2. Foreign
US Dollars 446 3 449 97 19 _ 16
Yen 31 - 31 78 - 78
Pounds 2 - 2 - - -
Euro 8 - & - - -
Other currencies _ 499 - _ 499 250 - _ 250
Total Foreign _986 _3 _989 42 19 _444
Total Domestic and Forcign 5,708 L1393 2,101 1,496 2197 2,093




Atcall
1. Domestic
The BoT and FIDF -
Commercial banks 369
Other banks 201
Finance, securities and
credit foncier companies 3,535
Other financial institutions 617
Total Domestic 4,722
2. Foreign
US Dollars 446
Yen 31
Pounds 2
Euro 8
Other currencies __499
Total Foreign __986
Total Domestic and Foreign 5,708

19

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

2003

68

81

—3
L188

Long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

Subordinated Debentures (Note 20)

Subordinated Debentures cum
Preferred Shares (Note 21)

Subordinated Debentures of the
Thai Farmers Bank Plc. No.2
{Note 21)

Subordinated Debentures of the

KASIKORNBANK Plc. No.3
(Note 21)

Total

omesti

19,967

20,000

12,000

2003

Eoreign

7,874

The Bank

Total Atcall
68 -
369 444
201 172
3,616 878
1.653 L5772
5,907 3,071
449 97
3] 78

2 -

8 -
499 250
989 425

6.896 3.496
Consolidated and The Bank
Total Domestic
7,874 -
19,967 19,967
20,000 20,000
12,000 .
59.84) 39.967

(Million Baht)

2002

Term Total
28 28

. 444

- 172

97 975
2,053 3.630
2178 5.249
19 116

- 78

- 250
_19 444
2.197 2.693

2002

Eoreign

8,589

(Million Baht)

Total
8,589

19,967

20,000
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SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES AND WARRANTS

The Board of Directors in its meeting on July 25, 1996 approved the issuance of US$ 200 million of unsecured
subordinated debentures, having a face value of US$ 100,000 each, with a twenty-year maturity offered at a price of

USS$ 98,997 each on August 21, 1996 carrying a 8.25 percent coupon rate payable semi-annually.

In addition, the second issuance of warrants of 100 million units having a six-year maturity, were offered to existing
sharehoiders in the ratio of eight ordinary shares for each warrant, at a price of Baht 25 each totaling Baht 2,500
million. Each warrant can be exercised quarterly over their maturity for a Baht 10 par value ordinary share at a price
of Baht 200 each. The subscription period was during September 4-12, 1996. On August 20, 1999, the exercise price
was adjusted to Baht 131.832 and the exercise ratio of ordinary shares was 1.51708 per each warrant. The last exercise
date was September 16, 2002 and expired warrants amounting to Baht 2,520 million have been presented in the

financial statements as premium on expired warrants,

A resolution was passed by the Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders held on August 11, 1999 authorizing (i) the
issuance and offering for sale of 50,000,000 units of warrants for ordinary shares of the Bank to the Bank’s employees,
except for directors, under a three-year scheme and (ii) allocating 50,000,000 new ordinary shares from the increase of
the authorized share capital, with a par value of Baht 10 each, to support the exercise of the warrants for ordinary

shares of the Bank to be issued and offered for sale to Bank employees, except for directors, under the above scheme.

Warrants issued to Bank employees (except directors) consisted of:

Details of Warrants Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3
1. Offering date August 1-31, 2000 December 7-28, 2001 December 2-30, 2002
2. Maturity five-year and four-month five-year and one-day five-year
3. Offering price zero Baht zero Baht zero Baht
4. Right to exercise 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share 1 warrant : | ordinary share 1 warrant : | ordinary share
5. Exercise price 30 Baht 30 Baht . 27.82 Baht
6. Exercise date

(every last business day)

7. Term of exercise period

June and December June and December March , June,

September and December

Dec. 28, 2001 - Dec. 30,2005 Dec. 30, 2002 — Dec. 29, 2006 Dec. 30, 2003 - Dec. 30, 2007

8. Total offered 18,500,000 units 5,000,000 units 26,500,000 units
9. Total allocated 15,612,600 units 3,962,500 units 26,490,560 units
10. Total allocated and accepted 15,586,300 units 3,885,300 units 26,048,380 units
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(Uhit : Unit)

The movements of warrants during the year Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Total
Beginning balance as of January 1, 2002 14,359,900 3,885,300 - 18,245,200
Add Warrant issued during the year - - 26,048,380 26,048,380

Less Exercised right terminated from

employee’s retirement (546,000} (591.900) . (1.137.900)
Ending balance as of December 31, 2002 13,813,900 3,293,400 26,048,380 43,155,680
Less Exercised (5,045,940) (739,720) (2,670,872) (8,456,532)

Less Exercised right terminated from

employee’s retirement 22,20 (131,560} {229,980) (833,740)
Ending balance as of December 31, 2003 8,245,760 2,422,120 23,147,528 33,815,408

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES CUM PREFERRED SHARES NO.1 (COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS
“SLIPS") |

On January 11, 1999, the Bank jointly and simultaneously issued 547,345 Class A Preferred Shares (the “Preferred
Shares™), with a par value of Baht 10 per share and a liquidation preference of US$ 1,000 per share, and 547,345
Subordinated Debentures Cum Preferred Shares of the Thai. Farmers Bank Public Company Limited No. 1
(*“Debentures #17), with a face value of US$ 1,000 per debenture, for total proceeds of US$ 547,345,000 (Baht
19,999,986,300). These securities were purchased by The Preferred Shares-Subordinated Debentures of Thai Farmers
Bank Plc. Fund (the “Fund”) with the proceeds from the Fund’s offering of’ Investment Units to institutional investors.
The Bank and the Fund entered into a Master Investment Contract (the “Contract”) that sets forth certain terms and

conditions for the securitics.

The Preferred Shares are noncumulative. The Bank must declare and pay a full dividend on the Preferred Shares if it
declares and pays a dividend on ordinary shares of the Bank, The amount of the dividend on the Preferred Shares shall

be limited to Baht 1 per share per annum if either the Bank continues to pay interest on the Debentures #1 in full or the

liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares has been reduced to par as discussed below. If the Bank has not

continued to pay interest in full on the Debentures #1, the dividend on the Preterred Shares shall be equal to the annual
interest not paid on the Debentures #1. If the Bank does not declare and pay a dividend to ordinary shareholders and,
therefore, is not required to pay a dividend on the Preferred Shares, the Bank still has the option to pay part or all of
the dividends on the Preferred Shares if there are sufficient retained profits or not to pay any dividend. Upon a
redemption of the Debentures #1, the liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares is reduced to par value and each

Preferred Share shall be converted into one ordinary share of the Bank under the terms set forth in the Contract.




The Debentures #1 mature upon liquidalion of the Bank. They are redeemable early at the option of the Bank, and
upon approval of the Bank of Thailand, if the Debentures #1 and Preferred Shares no longer quality as tier | capital of
the Bank or if interest payments under the Debentures #1 are no longer deductible as an expense for income tax
purposes. Otherwise, they are redeemable at the option of the Bank after five years. The Debentures #1 bear interest at
a stated rate of 19.32% per annum payable semi-annually, though the effective interest rate is higher as discussed
below. The Bank is only required to pay such interest if it would otherwise be required to pay dividends on the
Preferréd Shares. If the Bank is not required to pay interest, the Bank still may pay part or all of the interest at its

option.

The Contract stipulates that, prior to redemption of the Debentures #1, the Preferred Shares may only be transferred to
another person if the Fund simultaneously transfers the Debentures #1 to the same person and such person agrees to be
bound by the Contract. Also under the Contract, the Fund and the Bank agree that, upon redemption of the Debentures
#1, the liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares is reduced to par and each Preferred Share shall be converted into
one ordinary share of the Bank. The Contract also effectively converts the Debentures #1 from a US$ obligation to a
Baht obligation by fixing the Baht equivalent exchange rate for interest payments and redemption to the exchange rate
officially declared by the Bank of Thailand on the day immediately prior to the issue date of the Debentures #1. The
resulting effective Baht denominated interest rate for the Debentures #1 is 23% per annum. Under the Contract, it is
understood that redemption of the Debentures #1 by the Bank shall be deemed to be full payment to the Fund under
the terms of the Debentures #1 and Preferred Shares as set forth in the prospectus and the Articles of Association,

respectively.

SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES NO.2

Also on January 11, 1999, the Bank issued 20,000,000 Subordinated Debentures of the Thai Farmers Bank Public
Company Limited No. 2 Due 2549 (“Decbentures #27), with a face value of Baht 1,000 per debenture, for total
proceeds of Baht 20,000,000,000. The Debentures #2 mature seven years after the issué date. They are redeemable
early at the option of the Bank, and upon approval of the Bank of Thailand, after five years. The Debentures #2 bear

interest at 22.296175% per annum payable quarterly.

“The Bank presented the transactions of the subordinated debentures cum preferred shares of’ Baht 19,999 million to
conform with the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand’s third interpretation titled The Hybrid
Financial Instruments Issued by Financial Institution. In this regard, the Bank presents the preferred shares and the
premiums on preferred shares totaling Baht 33 million as a part of shareholders’ equity and presents the remaining
Baht 19,967 million in the separate item under “Subordinated debentures cum preferred shares” as a part of liabilities.
However the total amount of subordinated debentures cum preferred shares can be counted as tier | cﬁpital as
permitted by the Bank of Thailand. The Debentures #2 of the Baht 20,000 million are presented as part of long-term

borrowings.
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SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES NO.3

The Board of Directors in its meeting on September 25, 2003 approved the issuance of the Subordinated Debentures in
name certificate withoﬁt security and not convertible, having debenture holder representative in Thai Baht currency
not exceeding Baht 12,000 million, with 2 maturity of no more than 10 years in order to raise long-term funding a
reasonable cost, to efficiently manage the interest rate risk and liquidity risk, as well as to strengthen the status of the
Banks tier two capital funds. On October 16, 2003, the Bank issued the Subordinated Debentures of
KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED No.3 Duec A.D. 2013 in the amount of Baht 12,000 million, with
a ten-year maturity. In accordance with certain terms and conditions and with the approval of the Bank of Thailand,
the Bank may redeem the debentures before maturity as follows: (1) on the tifth anniversary of the issue date or any
subsequent interest payment date after the fifth anniversary of the issue date; or (2) if the Bank can demonstrate that
interest payments under the Debentures are no longer, or will no longer be, deductible as an expense for income tax
purposes; or (3) in any other case as may be later stipulated by the Bank of Thailand. The debentures bear interest at
the fixed interest rate for the first five years of 3.75 percent per annum and the fixed interest rate for the second five

years of 4.25 percent per annum. Interest is payable quarterly.

THE EARLY REDEMPTION OF THE SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES CUM PREFERRED SHARES
NO.1 (COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS “SLIPS”)

The Board of Directors at its meeting on October 30, 2003, approved the early redemption on January 12, 2004, of the
Subordinated Debentures cum Preferred Shares of the Thai Farmers Bank Public Company Limited No.l Due upon
Liquidation in the amount of Baht 19,999,986,300 and the Subordinated Debentures of the Thai Farmers Bank Public
Company Limited No.2 Due A.D. 2006 in the amount of Baht 20,000,000,000 and approved any actions pertaining to
the Redemption of the Instruments and the conversion of the Class A Preferred Shares into ordinary sharves in
accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association, Terms and Conditions of the Instruments, Agreements and
relevant laws. The Bank obtained approval from the Bank of Thailand to proceed with the early redemption, subject to
the condition that the ratio of capital funds to risk assets of the Bank shall not thereby become lower than 9% and that

the Bank must comply with the Bank of Thailand’s relevant letter.

SHARE CAPITAL

On July 11, 2003, the Bank registered the change in its paid-up share capital as a result of the increase in paid-up

‘capital of 970,700 shares at Baht 10 par value, totaling Baht 9,707,000, from the exercise of warrants for ordinary

shares, which were issued and offered for sale to Bank employees {except for directors). As of December 31,2003 the
Bank had total paid-up share capital of Baht 23,540,654,170, which consisted of 2,353,518,072 ordinary shares and
547,345 class preferred shares.
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CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The ratios of capital to assets (Capital Adequacy Ratio) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 were calculated trom the

financial statements of the Bank and include the risk assets of the Bank’s two subsidiary asset management companies

as follows:

Tier ] Capital
Issued and fully paid up sharc capital, premiums on
share capital, warrants and premiums on warrants
Legal reserves
Other reserves
Net loss after appropriation
Subordinated debentures cum preferred shares
Total Tier 1 Capital
Tier 2 Capital
Surplus on land revaluation
Surplus on premises revaluation
Surplus on marketable equity securities revaluation
Provision for normal assets
Subordinated debentures
Total Tier 2 Capital

Total Capital Requirements

I~
o
Lo

78,586

800

26,675
(69,157)

56,871

4,168
1,471
272
4,448
m
38,204
95,075

(Million Baht)
2002°

78,557
800
26,675
(83,029)
19,967
42,970

4,192
1,550
3,758

20.561

30,061

13,031

The BoT’s regulations requires that banks registered in Thailand maintain a ratio of capital fund to assets and

contigencies of not less than 8.5% and that tier-1 capital must not be less than 4.25% of such assets and contigencies.

Capital adequacy ratios maintained by the Bank were as follows:

.Total Capital Requirements

Tier-1 Capital

LEGAL RESERVE

Percentage
2002 .
14.34
8.44

According to Public Company Act, the Bank has to allocate at least 5 percent of its net income for the year, less

accumulated net loss (if any), to capital reserves until this reserved capital is not less than 10 percent of authorized

share capital, and under the provision of the Civil and Commercial Code of Thailand, subsidiary companies are

required to set aside as a legal reserve at least 5 percent of its net income each time a dividend is declared until the

reserve reaches 10 percent of authorized share capital. The reserve is not available for dividend distribution,
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OTHER RESERVES

The Bank allocates part of its net income for the year to become other reserves which are classified or considered to be

general capital with no specific purpose.

BAD DEBT AND DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (REVERSAL)

Bad debt and doubtful accounts (reversal) for each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of’

Consolidated

2003 2002

General customers (12,785) (3,481)
Financial institutions __(47) 177
Total (12,832) (3,304)
Kasikomn Factoring Co.,Ltd. 6 -
(2,820 (3,304)

LOSS ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING

(Million Baht)

Loss on debt restructuring for each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of?

Consolidated
2003 2002
Net present value of cashflows lower
than investments in receivables 3,357 (393)
Transferred assets lower
than investments in receivables 10,103 4,620
Total 13,460 4,227

INCOME TAX

Income tax for each of the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of?

Consolidated
2003 2002
Current income tax expense 94 39
Deferred income tax expense relating to the
origination and reversal of temporary difference 61 114)
Income tax expense 33 (75)

The Bank
2003 2002
(10,560) (3,726)
47 177
(10,607) (3,549)
(10.607) (3,549
(Miition Baht)
Th n
2003 2002
2,825 (625)
_8,370 4.174
11,195 3.549
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2003 2002
(58) (115
61)] (115)
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The Bank has deferred income tax, which has been transferred directly to shareholders’ equity consisting of:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank

2003 2002

Deferred income tax relating to appraisal

revaluation surplus decreased (58) (64)
Deferred income tax relating to changes

in value of investment (decreased) increased (657) 502
ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL
Assets pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated and The Bank

2003 2002
Government bonds 5 5
State enterprise bonds 28 28
Total 33 33

The Bank has pledged these assets as collateral for electricity consumption and using as court collateral.




CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of’

(Million Baht)
Consolidated
2003 2002
Baht Foreign Currengx Total Baht  Foreign Currency Total
Avals on bills 459 - 459 261 - 261
Letters of indemnity-
borrowing 69 5,009 5,078 140 6,190 6,330
Other guarantees 25,889 4,172 30,061 24,706 3,955 128,661
Letters of credit 493 9,503 9,996 380 8,496 8,876
Exchange rate agreements
Purchase agreements 469 52,840 53,309 - 48,819 48,819
Sale agreements - 191,447 191,447 324 172,211 172,535
Interest rate agreements
Purchase agreements 2,000 21,743 23,743 - 11,559 11,559
Sale agreements 2,000 23,526 25,526 - 11,559 11,559
Credit Default Swap - 792 792 - - -
Unused credit line of
overdraft 105,176 - 105,176 103,353 - 103,353
Others 174 4,286 4,460 137 6,125 _6.262

Total 136,729 3318 - 450,047 429,301 268914 398215




(Million Baht)

The Bank

2003

Baht Foreign Currency Total
Avals on bills 459 - 459

Letters of indemnity-

2002

Baht  Foreign Currency
261 -

borrowing 69 5,009 5,078 140 6,190
Other guarantees 25,891 4,118 30,009 24,706 3,955
Letters of credit 493 9,503 9,996 380 8,496
Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 469 52,840 53,309 - 48,819

Sale agreements - 191,447 191,447 324 172,211
Interest rate agreements

Purchase agreements 2,000 21,743 23,743 - 11,559

Sale agreements 2,000 23,526 25,526 - 11,559
Credit Default Swap - 792 792 - -
Unused credit line of

overdraft 105,176 - 105,176 103,353 -
Others 174 4,286 4,460 137 _6.125

Total 136731 313264 449995 129301 268,914

Tota]
261

6,330
28,661
8,876

48,819
172,535

11,559
11,559

103,353
6.262
328,210

Under normal business operations, the Bank is a defendant in litigations against the Bank. These include cases of wrongful

acts brought against the Bank, with total claims amounting to Baht 935 million and Baht 792 million as of December 31,

2003 and 2002, respectively. The Management believes that any liability resulting from these litigations will not be

material to the Bank’s financial position or on the results of operations.




31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. Loans and contingencies made to executive ofticers and to business entities where the Bank and its subsidiaries, their
directors or executive officers, holds 10% or more of their paid-up capital, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are

summarized as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2003 2002
End of Year End of Year
Loans
1. Executive officers 20 24
2. Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries,
their directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or more of the paid - up capilal(” 1,629 2,530
Total 1,649 2,554
Contingencies
1. Executive officers ' - -
2. Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries,
their directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or more of the paid - up capital 69 16
Total 09 16
(Million Baht)
The Bank
2003 2002
End of Year ' End of Year
Loans
1. Executive officers | 20 24
2. Business entities where the Bank,
its directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or more of the paid - up capital ’ 22,769 31,750
Total 22,789 2L.774
Contingencies
1. Executive officers - -
2. Business entities where the Bank,
its directors or executive officers,
hold 10% or more of the paid - up capital _ 12 16
Total 12 16

o . . . . . . .
Transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities arc charged at market price as with other normal business.




2, Related Party

Relationships between the Bank and other business entities where control exists consisted of:

mpa a

Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd.
Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd.
Kasikorn Factoring Co.,Ltd.

Kanpai Co., Ltd.

Progress Plus Co., Ltd.

Progress Facilitics Management Co., Ltd.

Progress Services Co., Ltd.
Progress Management Co., Ltd.
Progress Storage Co., Ltd.
Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd.

Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Progress Software Co., Ltd.

Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd.

Type of
Relationship

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

% Shareholding

December 31,  December 31,
2003 2002
99.99% 99.99%
99.99% 99.99%
99.99% 99.99%
99.99% 99.99%
99.99% 20.00%
99.99% 99.99%
99.99% 99.99%
99.98% 99.98%
99.97% 99.97%
99.93% 99.93%
99.98% 99.98%
99.84% 99.84%
71.42% 71.42%
60.00% 60.00%
51.00% 51.00%

Type of share

Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share
Ordinary share

Ordinary share

Ordinary share

Ordinary sharc

Type of Business

Asset Management
Asset Management
Service
Property Development
Lending
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Service
Mutual Fund
Management
Service

Service




3 Significant transactions occurring between the Bank and related parties are summarized as follows:
(Million Baht)
The Bank
December 31,2003 December 31,2002

Loans
Subsidiary Companies
Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Beginning balance 16,850 20,600
Deductions _ 000 (3,750}
Ending balance 11.830 16,850
Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. ‘
Beginning balance 12,370 16,380
Deductions {4,365) (4010
Ending balance 8.005 12,370
Accrued in eceivables
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co,, Ltd. 27 56
- Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. 5 8
Deposits
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Lid. s 322
- Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. 84 153

(Million Baht)

The Bank
For E‘ggﬁ of the Years Ended December 31
2003 0w
Interest income
Subsidiary Companies
- Phethai Asset Management Co., Ltd. 204 391
- Ploy Asset Management Co., Ltd. 146 302

Loans to Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are 3-month bills with interest rates equal to the interest rate of
a 3-month fixed deposit, on which deposits are pledged as collateral. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the pledged

deposits were Baht 115 million and Baht 322 million, respectively.

Loans to Ploy Asset Management Company Limited are 3-month bills with interest rates equal to the interest rate of a
3-month fixed deposit, on which deposits are pledged as collateral. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the pledged

deposits were Baht 84 million and Baht 153 million, respectively,




As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for Phethai Asset
Management Company Limited, classified as normal loans, amounting to Baht 119 million and Baht 169 million,

respectively.

As of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for Ploy
Asset Management Company Limited, classified as normal loans, amounting to Baht 80 million and Baht 124 million,

respectively.

Income and expenses shared between the Bank, Phethai Asset Management Company Limited and Ploy Asset

Management Company Limited are charged at cost, except for fee income, which is charged at market price.

The Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts tor related business entities using the same method as for

general customers and in accordance with the BoT regulations.

Additional transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities, which are charged at macket price as

with other normal business, are as follows:

1. Assets, liabilities and contingencies shared between the Bank, its subsidiary and associated companies as of

-

December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized as follows;

(Million Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
oan

Subsidiary Companies

- Kasikorn Factoring Co., Ltd. - 70 1,285 70

- Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd. 48 - 48 -
Associated Companies

- E. S. Industry Co., Ltd. 325 325 325 325

(As aresult of reversal of loans and allowance

for doubtful accounts in 2002)




{(Mitlion Baht)

Consolidated [he Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
Deposits
Subsidiary Companies ,
- Kasikorn Research Center Co., Ltd. 18 31 18 31
- .Progress Appraisal Co., Ltd. 40 21 40 21
- Progress Land and Buildings Co., Ltd. - - 23 128
- Progress Software Co., Ltd. 22 34 22 34
- Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd. 5 41 5 41
- Kanpai Co., Ltd. 9 14 9 14
- Progress Plus Co., Ltd. 11 13 11 13
- Progress Service Co,,Ltd. 16 | 16 |
- Progress Management Co.,Ltd. 10 7 ° 10 7
- Kasikorn Factoring Co., LId. - 20 40 20
Associated Companies
- Processing Center Co., Ltd. 56 19 56 19
1 k and Money Market [tems (Liabilities '
Subsidiary Company
- Kasikom Asset Management Co., Ltd, - - 14 ’ 4
her Liabilitie
Subsidiary Companies
- Progress Software Co., Ltd. 40 20 40 20
- Progress Plus Co., Ltd. 21 16 21 16
ti ie
Subsidiary Company
- Thai Administration Services Co., Ltd. 33 50 33 50
Associated Companies
- E.S. Industry Co,, Ltd. 16 16 16 16

Certain subsidiaries and associated companies have entered into 2-year building lease agreements. Rentals are charged
at cost, As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank and its related parties have rental agreements with remaining

tenures amounting to Baht 3 million and Baht 7 million, respectively.




2. Revenue and expenses occurring between the Bank, its subsidiary and associated companies for each of the years

ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized as follows:

Subsidiary Companies
Revenue:
Interest income
Dividend income
Fee income
Other Income
Expenses:
Other expenses
Associated Companies
Revenues:
Interest income
Dividend income
Fee income
Expenses:

Other expenses

Consolidated
2003 2002
24 -
1 .
12 10
0974 665
- 5
4 3
- 2
36 33

{(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003 2002
8 -
203 65
66 47
13 I
974 666
. 5
4 3
- 2

36 33




3. Assets, liabilities and contingencies shared between the Bank and other business entities in which the directors,
key executive officers and close members of their families have significant influence as ot December 31, 2003

and 2002 were summarized as follows:

(Million Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank

2003 2002
Loans
-TT & T Public Co., Ltd. ' 2,425 2,557
- Stam Fo_od Products Public Co.,Ltd. 86 51
- Jutha Maritime Public Co., Ltd. 10 10
- Indo Worth (Thailand) Ltd. 44 24
- Charoen Pokhaphand Feedmill Public Co., Ltd. 100 3
Deposits
- Sermsuk Public Co., Ltd. 262 385
- Sermsuk Y.H.S. Beverage Co., Ltd. 13 6
- Com - Link Co., Ltd. 60 228
- Muang Thai Life Assurance Co., Ltd. 257 234
- Stam Food Products Public Co.,Ltd. 14 26
- Mitsubishi Elevator Asia Co., Ltd. 81 86
- Bangkok Glass Industry Co., Ltd. 20 : 65
- Thai British Security Printing Ltd. 46 36
- Punyariddhi Law Office Co.,Ltd. 8 I5
-TT&T Public Co., Ltd. 2,125 1,419
- Muangthai Holding Co.,Ltd. 10 7
- Siam Motors Parts Co.,Ltd. 18 ' 8
- Samart Corporation Public Co.,Ltd. 110 3
Contingengies
- Dole Thailand Lid. 71 8?
- SermSuk Co., Ltd. 18 13
- Com - Link Co,, Ltd. | 59 59
- Thai British Secutity Printing Ltd. 22 21
- Siam Food Products Public Co.,Ltd. 1,177 17
- Yip in Tsoi & Jacks Ltd. 19 11

- Bangkok Glass Industry Co., Ltd. 91 -




4. Assets, liabilities and contingencies shared between the Bank and its directors and key executive officers or the
Bank’s employees in which such persons have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling

the activities of the Bank as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized as follows:

(Miltion Baht)
Consolidated and The Bank

2003 2002
Deposits 579 445

32 BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE

The Bank and its subsidiary companies have not paid other benefits to directors and executives except for the benefits
that are normally paid such as directors’ fee, direciors’ bonuses (if any) and income 1ax, executives’ salary and

bonuses (if any).

33 LONG-TERM LEASE AGREEMENTS
1. Lease Agreement
As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank and its subsidiary companies have entered into land/building lease
agreements for branch offices and vehicle lease agreements. The Bank and its subsidiary companies were committed
to pay future rentals, which are summarized as follows:
(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank

Type of Lease Agreement Remaining of Period 2003 2003
Land/building lease agreements January 1, 2004 — October 17, 2027 368 368
Vehicle lease agreements January 1, 2004 - November 30, 2007 399 377

Total 167 145
(Million Baht)
Consolidated The Bank

Tvpe of Lease Agreement Remaining of Period 2002 2002
Land/building lease agreements January 1, 2003 - October 17, 2027 411 411
Vehicle lease agreements January 1, 2003 - November 30, 2006 523 514

Total 934 925
2. Service Agreement

On November 12, 2002 the Bank has entered into an Information Technology Service Agreement with {BM Thailand
Co., Ltd., under which service will be provided until December 31, 2012 and for which as of December 31, 2003 the

Bank is committed to pay a total service fee of Baht 9,143 million.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 12, 2004, the Bank redeemed early the Subordinated Debentures cum Preterred Shares of the Thai Farmers
Bank Pgblic Company Limited No.! in the amount of Baht _19,999,986,300 and the Subordinated Debentures of the
Thai Farmers Bank Public Company Limited No.2 in the amount ot Baht 20,000,000,000 and the payment have been
made completely to the Preferred Shares-Subordinated Debentures of Thai Farmers Bank Plc. Fund. The preferred

shares were converted to ordinary shares of 547,345 shares at the same date.

On January 9, 2004, the Bank registered the change of its paid-up capital as a result of the increase in paid-up capital
of 7,485,832 shares at Baht 10 par value, totaling Baht 74,858,320, from the exercise of warrants for ordinary shares,
which were issued and offered for sale to Bank employees, except for directors (Note 20) and on January 13, 2004, the
Bank also registered the change of its paid-up capital as a result from the conversion of Class A Preterred Shares into
ordinary shares of 547,345 shares at Baht 10 par value, totaling Baht 5,473,450 (Note 21). The Bank has total paid-up
share capital of Baht 23,615,512,490 represents 2,361,551,249 ordinary shares.

CHANGE OF ACCOUNTING PROCEDURE OF THE ASSET MANAGEMENT SUBSIDIARIES

In the accounting year 2003, the asset management subsidiaries accounted for the transfer of financial assets from
investment in receivables to loans, in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s notitication, dated December 3, 2002,
“Re: Accounting procedures regarding purchasing or taking of transfer of loan debtors and supervision guidelines”,

which is applicable to financial statements for accounting periods ended on or after December 31, 2003 onwards, as

tollows ;

Investments in receivables, which were restructured, have been transterred to loans at the fair value on the transfer
date, including the debtors restructured before the year 2003. The subsidiaries recognized interest income on loans on

a cash basis in 2003, whereas previously they recognized interest income using the effective yield method.




The effects of the change in the accounting procedure of the asset management subsidiaries in the consolidated and

separate financial statements of the Bank are summarized as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidaied The Bank
As of December 31, 2003
Decrease in long-term investments - net ' 6,939 -
Increase in investment in subsidiaries and associated companies - net - i 2,074
Increase in loans - net 12,251 -
For the year ended December 31, 2003
Decrease in interest income on loans (1,265) -
Decrease in interest income from investments (1,247) -
Decrease in bad debt and doubtful accounts 2,008 -
Increase in gain on transfer of financial assets 2,578 -
Increase in share of profit from investments on equity method - 2.074
Increase in net income 2,074 2,074
Increase in earnings per share _0.88 -0.88

In accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s notification, dated December 3, 2002, there is no requirement to apply this

change in accounting procedure retroactively.
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THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS DIFFERENTIATED BY DOMESTIC
AND OVERSEAS BUSINESS

The financial position and results of operations differentiated by domestic and foreign business can be summarized

as follows:
1. Financial Position Classified by Types of Busines
(Miltion Baht)
Consolidated
December 31, 2003
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Business Business Tolal Transactions Total
Total assets 810,873 20,470 831,343 (10,012) 821,331
Interbank and money market items - net (assets) 99,088 5,834 104,922 - 104,922
Investments — net 121,417 13,837 135,254 - 135,254
Loans 547,151 767 547918 - 547,918
Deposits 684,874 72 (84,946 - 684,946
Interbank and money market items (liébilities) 7,101 - 7,101 - 7,101
Borrowings 51,967 7,874 59,841 - 59,841
Contingencies 444,163 21,841 466,004 (15,957) 450,047
(Miltion Baht)
Consolidated
Decemb t]
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Business Business Total Transactions Total
Total assets . 749,056 26,112 775,168 (14,386) 760,782
Interbank and money market items - net (assets) 89,581 5,259 94,840 - 94,840
Investments - net ' 144,963 19,901 164,864 - 164,864
Loans 505,259 944 506,203 - 506,203
Deposits 651,315 78 651,393 - 651,393
Interbank and money market items (liabilities) 5,693 - 5,693 - 5,693
Borrowings 39,967 8,589 48,556 - 48,556

Contingencies 395,106 20,674 415,780 (17,565) 398,215




Total assets

lnterbar{k and money market items-net (assets)
Investments - net

Loans

Deposits

Interbank and money market items (liabilities)
Borrowings

Contingencies

Total assets

Interbank and money market items-net (assets)
investments - net

Loans

Deposits

Interbank and money market items (liabilities)
Borrowings

Contingencies

Domestic

Business
810,418
98,816
126,927
529,323
685,150
6,896
51,967

444,111

Domestic

Business

748,976
89,514
138,868
495,582
651,922
5,693
39,967
395,106

(Million Bahy)

The Bank
December 31, 2003
Foreign Eliminated

Business Total Transactions _'Lo_tcﬂ
20,470 830,888 (10,012) 820,876
5,834 104,644 - 104,644
13,838 140,765 - 140,765
767 530,090 - 530,090
72 685,222 - 685,222

- 6,896 - 6,896
7,874 59,841 - 59,841
21,841 465,952 (15,957) 449,998
(Million Baht)

The Bank
Dec r31, 2002
Foreign Eliminated

Business Total Transactions Total
26,112 775,088 (14,386) 760,702
5,259 94,773 - 94,773
19,901 158,769 - 158,769
943 496,525 - 496,525
78 652,000 - 652,000

- 5,693 - 5,693
8,589 48,556 - 48,556
20,674 415,780 (17,565) 398,215




Interest énd dividend income

Interest expense

Net income {expense) from interest and dividend
Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income before income tax

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income (expense) from interest and dividend
Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income before income tax

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net income (expense) from interest and dividend
Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income before income tax

'B

ines
(Miilion Baht)
Consolidated
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Business Business Total Transactions Total
32,514 527 33,041 (256) 32,785
12,529 938 13,467 (256) 13210
19,985 411) 19,574 - 19,574
12,475 1,218 13,693 - 13,693
18,309 29 18,388 . 18.388
141510 128 14,879 —_ 14,879
(Million Baht)
Consolidated
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Business Business Total Transactions  Total
35,525 837 36,362 (453} 35,909
16,497 1,243 17,740 453 17,287
19,028 (4006) 18,622 - 18,622
7,375 632 8,007 an 7,996
19.884 U3 19997 Ul 19986
£519 13 £.632 —_— £,632
(Million Baht)
The Bank
For the Year Ended December 31, 200
Domestic Foreign Eliminated
Business Business Total Transagtions Total
30,765 527 31,292 (256) 31,036
12,509 938 13,447 (256) 13,191
18,256 (411) 17,845 - 17,845
12,969 1,218 14,187 - 14,187
12,197 19 17276 - 17,276
14,028 128 14,756 - 14,756




{Million Baht)

The Bank
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Domestic Foreign ' Eliminated
Business Business Total Transactions Total
Interest and dividend income 32,954 837 33,791 (453) 33,338
Interest expense 16,497 1,243 17,740 (453) 17287
Net income (expense) from interest and dividend 16,457 (406) 16,051 - 16,051
Non-interest income 7,368 632 8,000 an 7,989
Non-interest expense 12.36Y 113 17,482 {1 17471
Income before income tax 6,454 113 6,569 — 6.569

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a financial fiability

or equity instrument of another enterprise,

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or a borrower may default on its contractual obligations and

agreements. Such default may be caused by the counterparty’s inability to pay due to financial encumbrances or

their intention not to abide by the contractual agreements, resulting in a loss to the Bank.

The Bank has implemented credit risk management processes (o measure and control credit risk. Through the use
of credit risk rating tools for assessing customers’ eredit risk rating, the Bank is capable of granting better quality
loans and is able to determine an appropriate return given the risk level of cach loan. In addition, the Bank is able
to allocate credit concentration to various business sectors and industries, so as to diyersif‘y credit risk as a whole.
In the credit approval process, the Bank considers the customer’s ability to repay and the loan objectives as key
factors in the approval of credit and may obtain sufticient collateral or other securities, where appropriate, as a
means of mitigating the risk of financial losses from default. To maximize the effectiveness of the credit approval
process, credit analysis and approval functions are separated from the units responsible for maintaining customer
relationships. The Bank also has processes for regularly reviewing customers’ credit rating and performance on
all approved transactions. For non-performing loans (NPL), the Bank has closely and continuously monitored,

resolved and/or restructured them to retain maximum benefits for the organization.

Of the “loans” item shown in the balance sheet, the Bank’s maximum credit loss is the carrying amount of net
loans after deduction of applicable provision for losses without considering the value ot collateral. In addition,

credit risk may arise from off-balance sheet items or contingencies.




Market risk

Market risk is any risk due to changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or securities prices that will have an
effect on the Bank’s funding costs, investment position or foreign currency position, resulting in possible loss to
the Bank. Market risk for the Bank can be categorized as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and equity

position risk.
1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to any risk that arises from changes in interest rates which may affect the value of the
Bank’s financial instruments or may cause volatility in the Bank’s earnings or fluctuations in the value of the
Bank’s financial assets and liabilities, both in the current reporting period and in future years. Interest rate risk

also arises from the structure and characteristics of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and equities.

Most of the Bank's credit is based on the Bank's floating interest rates (MLR, MOR and MRR). Deposit interest
rates are in line with the announcements made by the Bank. As a result, the interest rate risk faced by the Bank is
generally low. However, the Bank actively manages such risk by adjusting its asset and liability structure in order
to maximize returns under the acceptable risk levels in order to the best fit current market conditions and trends.
Management of interest rate risk is under the supervision of the Bank’s Asset and Liability Man‘agement

Sub-Committee.

An analysis of loans (including financial institutions) at fixed and floating interest rates (MLR, MOR and MRR) as of

December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

{Mittion Baht)

Consolidated The Bank
2003 2002 2003 2002
Fixed interest rate 118,160 80,871 123,733 104,534
Floating interest rate 431,57 429.697 408,170 396,356
Total Loans (including financial institutions) 549,731 510,568 531,903 500,890

The following are interest-bearing financial assets and labilities ol the Bank and its subsidiaries, the average balances
of which are calculated by using beginning and ending balances. The average interest and dividend rates during the

years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:




Interest-bearing Financial Assets

Interbank and money market items

Securities purchased under resale agreements
Investments

Loans
Total
Interest-bearing Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Borrowings

Total

Interest-bearing Financial Assets

Interbank and money market items
Securities purchased under resale agreements
{nvestments
Loans
Total
Interest-bearing Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Borrowings

Total

Average

Balance

100,502
25,055

153,740

527.061
806,358

668,170
6,397
1,363

34,199

130,129

Average

Balance

100,330

25,055
150,444
513.308
189,137

668,611
6,295
1,363

-54.199

130468

003

Interest and

Dividend
Income/

Expense

1,685
566

2003

[nterest and

Dividend

Income/

Expense

(Million Baht)

2002
lnterest and-
Dividend

Income/  Average

Expense  Rate (%)
3,175 244
403 3.65
6,430 4.34
25,900 527
35,908 4.60
11,812 .80
300 3.07
I 1.05
5,163 10.61
17,286 241

(Million Baht)

2002
interest and
Dividend

Income/  Average

Expense
3,172 2.44
403 3.65
4,756 3.46
25.007 5.20
33.338 439
11,812 1.79
300 3.07
1 1.0
5,163 10.61

Consolidated
Average Average
Rate (% Balance

1.68 130,303

226 11,050

287 148,011

4.96 491345

4.07 180,709

1.16 657,962

3.54 9,758

0.44 1,030

9.65 48,652

1.81 117.402

The Bank
Average _Average
Rate (%) Balancg

1.68 130,014

2.26 11,050
2.93 137,384
4.75 481,333
3.93 159,781
1.16 658,423
327 9,762
0.44 1,030
9.65 48,652
1.81 117,867

17,286 241




Financial assets and liabilities, classified by maturity of interest repricing, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are

shown below:

inancial Ass

Cash

Interbank and money market
Items

Securities purchased under
resale agreements

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

Customers® liability under
Acceptances

Accrued income receivable

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market
items

Liabilities payable on demand

Borrowings

Bank’s liability under
acceptances

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

Off-balance sheet items

Forward exchange contracts

Cross currency swaps

Interest rate swaps '

Credit Default Swap

Consolidated

{(Million Baht)

2003

Immediate  Less than 6 months - Over Over Non-interest Stop
Repricing  Gmonths to | Year 1 Year Year, Bearing Accrued Total
- - - - - 18,699 - 18,699
1,663 7,916 83,800 60 - 11,493 588 105,520
- 31,710 - - - 31,710
15,012 20,082 26,442 58,681 5,450 6,749 6,875 139,291
306,092 47,246 3,867 32,516 8,069 909 149,219 547918
- - - - - 2,971 - 2,971
- - - - - 676 - 676
- - - - - 1,671 - 1,671
- - - - - 2.699 2.099
322,767 106,954 114,109 91,257 13.519 45,867 156,682 851,153
339,806 273,617 27,305 8,103 - 36,115 - 684,946
1,117 146 1,113 - - ' 4,725 - 7,101
- - - - - 7,042 - 7,042
- 39,967 - - 19,874 - - 59,841
- - - - - 676 676
- - - - - 2,564 - 2,564
- - - - - 1,626 - 1,626
340,923 313730 28418 8,103 19.874 52,748 - 763.796
L18,156)  (206.776) 85,691 83,154 {6,355) (6.881) 156682 87,359
- - - - - 243,796 - 243,796
- 158 - 802 - - 960
- {4,271 2,974 - - 14,779 - 32,024
- - - - - 792 - 792




(Million Baht)
Consolidated

2002
Immediate  Lessthan 6 months Over Over Non-interest Stop
Repricing 6 months o] Year | Year 5 Years Bearing accrued Total
Financial Assets
Cash - - - - - 9,764 - 9,764
[nterbank and money market

itemns 3,758 54,608 31,135 130 - 4,850 1,003 95,434
Securities purchased under

resale agreements - 18,400 - - - - - 18,400
Investments 15,241 38,055 4,487 69,689 16,632 8,502 15583 168,189
Loans 256,679 36,928 1,425 15,510 9,973 1,079 184,609 506,203
Accrued interest receivable - - - - - 3,410 - 3,410
Customers’ liability under

acceptances - - - - - 597 - 597
Accrued income receivable - - - - - 1,950 - 1,950
Other assets - - - - - 138 - 138
Total Financial Assets 275,678 147,991 37,047 85,329 26,605 30,290 201,195 04,135
Financial Liabilities
Deposits 282,026 304,025 26,171 12,739 - 26,432 - 651,393
Interbank and money market

Items 1,522 174 2,023 - - 1,974 - 5,693
Liabilities payable on demand‘ - - - - - 03,423 - 3,423
Borrowings . - . 20,000 28,556 - - 48,556
Bank’s liability under '

Acceptances - - - - - 597 - 597
Accrued interest payable - - - - - 3,030 - 3,030
Other liabilities - - - - - 884 - 884
Total Financial Liabilities 283,548 304,199 28,194 32,739 28,556 36,340 - 713 57§
On-balance sheet items (7,870) (156,208) 8,833 52,590 (1,951 (6,050) 201,195 90,559
Off-balance sheet items
Forward exchange contracts - - - - - 220,727 - 220,727
Cross currency swaps - - - 627 - - - 027
[nterest rate swaps - 8.648 - 2911 o - - 11,559

Total off-balance sheet items - 8,648 - 3,538 - 220,727 - 2329




Financial Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market
items

Securities purchased under
resale agreements

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

Customers’ liability under
acceptances

Accrued income receivable

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market
[tems

Liabilities payable on demand

Borrowings

Bank’s {iability under
acceptances

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

ff-balance sheet item

Forward exchange contracts

Cross currency swaps

Interest rate swaps

Credit Default Swap

Total off-balance sheet items

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003

Immediate  Less than 6 months Qver Over Non-interest Stop
Repricing 6 months to | Year 1 Year S Years Bearing accrued Totul
- - - - - 18,699 18,699
1,461 7,830 83,801 G0 - 11,503 588 105,243
- 31,710 - - - - - 31,710
15,012 19,598 26,442 58,499 5,450 15,649 1,256 141,906
306,977 65,971 3,803 32,418 8,069 909 111,943 530,090
] ) . 1,485 . 1,485
- - - - - 676 - 676
- - - - - 1,597 - 1,597
- - - - - 2.664 - 2,664
2345 125,10 114,046 90,977 13,519 53,182 113,787 834,070
340,046 273,617 27,305 8,103 - 36,151 685,222
Y
942 216 1,013 - - 4,725 - 6,896
- - - - - 7,042 - 7,042
- 39,967 - - 19,874 - 59,841
- - - - - 676 676
- - - - - 2,564 - 2,564
- - - - - 1,532 - 1532
340,988 313,800 28,318 8.103 19,874 52,690 - 763773
(17,538)  (188,691) 83,728 82,874 (6,353) 492 113,787 70,297
. . . - - 243,796 243,796
158 - 802 - - - 960
- 14,271 2,974 - - 14,779 32,024
- - - - - 792 - 792
—_ 14,429 29174 302 — 259,367 277,572




Financial Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market
Items

Securities purchased under
resale agreements

Investments

Loans

Accrued interest receivable

Customers” liability under
Acceptances

Accrued income receivable

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market
Items

Liabilities payable on demand

Borrowings

Bank’s liability under
acceptances

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

On-balance sheet items

Qff-balance sheet items

Forward exchange contracts

Cross currency swaps

Interest rate swaps

Total off-balance sheet items

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2002
Immediate Less than 6 months Over Over Non-interest Stop

Repricing S months tol Year | Year S Years Bearing accry Total
- - - - - 9,764 - 9,764
3,686 54,608 31,135 130 - 4,855 1,003 95,417

- 18,400 - - - - - 18,400
15,240 37,666 4,487 69,501 16,632 14,197 1,258 158,981
256,679 66,148 1,425 15,510 9,973 1,079 145,711 496,525
- - - - - 1,934 - 1,934

- - - - 597 - 597

- - - - 1,884 - 1,884
- - - - 120 - 120
275,605 176,822 37,047 85.141 26,605 34,430 147.972 783,622
282,154 304,025 26,171 12,739 26,911 - 652,000
1,522 174 2,023 - - 1,974 5,693

- - - - - 3,423 - 3,423

- - - 20,000 28,556 - - 48,556

- - - - - 597 - 597

- - - - 3,030 - 3,030

- - - - . 621 . 621
283,676 304,199 28,194 32,739 28,556 36,556 - 713,920
(8,071) (127.377) 8,853 52,402 (1,950) 2,126) 47972 69,702
- - - - 220,727 220,727

- - - 627 - - 0627

- 8,648 - 2,911 - - 11559

—_— _ 8,648 — 2.5 : 220,727 —_—

212913




Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that occurs from changes in exchange rates which may attfect the value of the Bank’s
financial instruments or may cause volatility in the Bank"s earnings or fluctuations in the value of the Bank’s assets and
liabilities.

The Bank engages in foreign exchange related transactions, which may create foreign exchange risk. However, the
Bank believes that such risk is loQ, as most foreign currency transactions are protected by customers’ underlying
wransactions. The Bank’s policy is to minimize foreign exchange risk by closing its foreign exchange position on u daily
basis. Management of foreign exchange risk is under the supervision of” the Asset and Liability Management Sub-

Committee.

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ foreign currency position, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2003
Currency
US Dollars Yen Pounds Euro Others Total

Assets
Cash 92 9 6 72 36 215
Interbank and money market

items - net 101,526 21 10 49 52 101,658
Investments - net 25,885 333 - - - 26,218
Loans and accrued interest

receivables - net 17,943 861 123 1,182 431 20,540
Accrued income receivables 304 3 - - 307
Other assets 87 - _1 _ —_ — 88

Total assets 145837 1227 140 1303 519 149.026
Liabilities
Deposits 2,061 259 40 155 46 2,561
Interbank and money market items 449 31 2 8 499 ' 989
Borrowing 7,874 - - - - 7,874
Accrued interest payables 236 - - - - 236
Other liabilities 43 9 16 __10 31 _ 109

Total liabilities _10.663 _299 _58 _173 576 _11,769
Foreign currency position of

on-balance itéms-net 135,174 928 32 L1130 5D 137,257

Off-balance sheet items-net

{Forward exchange contracts

and cross currency swaps) (135,824) _915) _(62) (1,094) (324 (138,219




Assets
Cash
Interbank“and money market
items - net
Investments - net
Loans and accrued interest
receivables - net
Accrued income receivables
Other assets
Total assets
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Borrowing
Accrued interest payables
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Foreign currency position of
on-balance items-net
Off-balance sheet items-net
(Forward exchange contracts

and cross currency swaps)

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2002
Currency
US Dollar Yen Pounds Euro Others Total
80 14 8 91 36 229
86,792 - 2 4] 58 86,893
32,773 324 - - 33,097
17,695 677 174 711 368 19,625
477 3 - - - 480
62 3 - —_ 3 Y
137,879 1,021 184 843 467 40,394
1,855 224 34 1 28 2252
116 78 g 38 204 444
8,589 - - - - -%,589
258 - - - - 258
260 10 2 5 4] 318
11,078 312 _44 154 213 11,861
126,801 109 _140 089 194 128,533
(121,326 (L.021) 57 (726) (597) (123.827)




Assets
Cash

Interbank and money market
items - net
Investments - net
Loans and accrued interest
receivables - net
Accrued income receivables
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Borrowing
Accrued interest payables
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Foreign currency position of
on-balance items-net
Off-balance sheet items-net
(Forward exchange contracts

and cross currency swaps)

(Million Baht)

The Ba
2003
Currency
US Dollar Yen Pounds ure Others Totla
92 9 6 72 36 215
101,526 21 10 49 52 101,658
25,885 333 - - - 26,218
17,943 861 123 1,182 431 20,540
304 3 - - - 307
87 - 1 - - 88
14583 1,227 140 1,303 519 1 2
2,061 259 40 155 46 2,561
449 31 2 g 499 989
7,874 - - - - 7874
236 - - - - 236
43 9 14 10 kX {07
10.663 299 _56 173 576 . _11.767
135,174 228 24 L1130 Gn 137,259
(135,824) Q15) (62) (1,004) (324) (138.219)




Assets
Cash
Interbank and money market
items - net
Investments - net
Loans and accrued interest
receivables - net
Accrued income receivables
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Borrowing
Accrued interest payables
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Foreign currency position of
on-balance items-net
Off-balance sheet items-net
(Forward exchange contracts

and cross currency swaps)

The Bank

(Million Baht)

Currency
US Dollar en Pounds Euro Others Tota

80 14 8 91 36 229
86,792 - 2 41 58 86,893
32,773 324 - - 33,097
17,695 677 174 711 368 19,625
477 3 - - - 480
62 3 o - _3 70
137.879 1,021 184 843 467 140,394
1,855 224 34 11t 28 2,252
116 78 8 38 204 444
8,589 - - - - 8,589
258 - - - 258
260 10 - 3 4 J— ]

11,078 312 _42 154 73 11.85
126,801 709 442 689 194 128,535
(121,326} (L020) 4s7 (726) (597) - (123.827)




3. Equity position risk

Equity position risk is any risk that arises from changes in the price of equities or common stock that may cause

volatility in the Bank’s earnings or fluctuations in the value of the Bank’s financial assets.

The Bank’s policy is not to increase its equity investments, but to divest any equity position that is not directly

related to its main banking business. The Bank manages and monitors market situations closely in order to

acquire supportive information for proper management and retain maximum benefits for the Bank.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due, become of inability to

realise its assets or to cover funding requirements at an appropriate price which results in a loss to the Bank.

The Bank manages its liquidity position under the Bank of Thailand’s liquidity reserve regulation and other applicable

regulations. The Treasury Department is accountable for managing the Bank’s liquidity position by providing short-term

and long-term funding sources as well as investing in highly liquid assets in both domestic and foreign currencies. The

Bank also ensures that its liquidity position is suitable and sufficient for the current and foreseeable market conditions.

The Asset and Liabilities Management Sub-Committee supervise management of liquidity risk.

A maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities and oft-balance sheet items as ot December 31, 2003 and 2002

were as follows:

Financial Assets
Cash
Interbank and money market items
Securities purchased under

resale agreements
Investments
Loans
Accrued interest receivables
Customers’ liability under acceptance
Accrued income receivables

Other assets

Total Financial Assets

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2003
Lessthan 6 months Over Over No

Atcall 6months  to 1 Year | Year S Years Malurity Total
- - - - .- 18,699 18,699
5,273 . 88,696 11,490 60 - I 105,520
- 30,710 - - - - 31,710
4,629 19,807 26,815 65,971 16,238 5,831 139,291
183,956 161,910 i1,288 80,232 110,532 - 547,918
- 2,971 - - - - 2,971

- 676 - - - - 676

- 1,671 - - - - 1,671
193,858 307.441 49,593 146,263 126,770 27.230 851,155




(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2003
Less than 6 months Over Over No
Financial Liabilities
Deposits 375,921 273,617 27,305 8,103 - -
Interbank and money market items 5,842 146 L113 -
Liability payable on demand 7,042 - - - -
Borrowings - 39,967 - - 19,874 -
Bank’s liability under accpetances - 676 - - - -
Accrued interest payables 87 777 131 1,238 331 -
Other liabilities - - - - - 1,626
Total Financial Liabilities 388.892 315,183 28,549 9,341 _20.205 _1.626
Liquidity-net (195.034)  _(2.742) 21044 136922 106365 23004
Off-balance sheet items
Avals on bills - 459 - - -
Letter of indemnity borrowings 393 61 64 788 71 3,701
Other guarantees 3,381 6,025 5,488 1,823 7 13,337
Letter of credit - 9,996 - - - -
Forward exchange contracts - 224,101 19,618 77 - -
Cross curréncy swaps - - - 960 - -
Interest rate swaps - - 11,332 17,148 3,544 -
Credit Default Swap - - - 792 - -
Total off-balance sheet items 3,274 240,642 36,502 _21,588 3,622 17,038

Total

684,946
7,101
7,042

59,841
676
2,564

—1.626

163.796

£87.359

459
5,078
30,061
9,996
243,796
960
32,024
792
323,166




Financial Assets
Cash
Interbank and money market items
Securities purchased under
resale agreements
Investments
Loans

Accrued interest receivables

Customers’ liability under acceptances

Accrued income receivables
Other assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Liability payable on demand
Borrowings
Bank’s liability under acceptances
Accrued interest payables
Other liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities
Liquidity-net

ff-balance sheet item
Avals on bills
Letter of indemnity borrowings
Other guarantees
Letter of credit
Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

- Total otf-balance sheet items

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2002
Less than 6 months Over Over No
Atcall 6 months 1o} Year | Year 3 Years Maturity Total
] ) 3 . - 9,764 9,764
8,280 55,450 31,134 251 198 171 95,484
- 18,400 - - - - 18,400
10,085 40,798 5,537 72,833 31,030 7,906 168,189
211,370 120,456 5,477 74,385 94,515 - 506,203
- 3,410 - - - - 3,410
- 597 - - - - 597
- 1,950 - - - - 1,950
- - - - - 138 138
229735 241,061 42,148 147,469 125,743 17.979 804.135
308,458 304,025 26,171 12,739 - - 651,393
3,496 174 2,023 - - 5,693
3,423 - 3,423
- - 20,000 8,589 19,967 48,556
- 597 - - - 597
- 2,641 197 192 - - 3,030
- - - - - _884 884
315377 307,437 28391 32931 8,589 20851 713,576
(85642)  (66376) 13157 L4S8  LZls4 Q872) 9058
- 261 - - - 261
433 57 56 723 287 4,774 6,330
3,187 5,559 5,576 2,194 6 12,139 28,661
- 8,876 - - 8,876
- 209,069 11,442 216 - - 220,727
- - - 627 - - 627
- 8.648 - 2911 - - 11,559
3,620 232470 17,074 40,671 293 16913 227.041




Financial Assets
Cash
Interbank and money market items
Securities purchased under
resale agreements
Investments
Loans

Accrued interest receivables

Customers’ liability under acceptances

Accrued income receivables
Other assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Deposits
[nterbank and money market items
Liability payable on demand
Borrowings
Bank’s liability under acceptances
Accrued interest payables
Other liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities
Liquidity-net

ff-bal heet items
Avals on bills
Letter of indemnity borrowings
Other guarantees
Letter of credit
Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps
Credit Default Swap

Total off-balance sheet items

(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003
Less than 6 months Over Over No

At call 6 months to | Year 1 Year 5 Years Maturity Total
- - - - - 18,699 18,699
5,081 88,611 11,490 60 | 105,243
- 31,710 - 3710
803 19,322 26,723 65,689 14,522 14,847 141,906
171,920 179,822 10,172 76,501 91,675 - 530,090
- 1,485 - - - - 1,485
- 676 - - - - 676
- 1,597 - - - - 1,597
- - - - - 2.664 2,664
177,804 323223 48,385 142,250 106,197 36211 834,070
376,197 273,617 27,305 8,103 - - 685,222
5,667 216 1,013 - - - 6,896
7,042 - - - 7,042
- 39,967 - 19,874 - 59,841
- 676 - - - 676
87 777 131 1,238 33} 2,564
- - - - - 1,532 1.532
388,993 315253 28,449 9.34] 20,205 1,532 163,773
(QULI189)  _7970 19936 132909 85992 34629 20297
- 459 - - - - 459
393 6l 64 788 71 3,701 5,078
3,381 5,971 5,490 1,823 7 13,337 30,009

- 9,996 - - - 9,996 .
- 224,101 19,618 77 - - 243,796
- - - 960 - - 960
- - 11,332 17,148 3,544 - 32,024
- - 792 - 792
3774 240,588 36,504 21,588 3,622 17.038 323114




Financial Assets
Cash
Interbank and money market items
Securities purchased under
resale agreements
Investments
Loans

Accrued interest receivables

Customers’ liability under acceptances

Accrued income receivables
Other assets

Total Financial Assets

Financi iliti

Deposits

Interbank and money market items
Liability payable on demand
Borrowings

Bank’s liability under acceptances
Accrued interest payables

Other liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities
Liquidity-net

Off-balance sheet items

Avals on bills

Letter of indemnity borrowings
Other guarantees

Letter of credit

Forward exchange contracts
Cross currency swaps

Interest rate swaps

Total off-balance sheet items

(Million Baht}

The Bank
2002
Less than 6 months Over Over No

Atecall 6 months to 1 Year 1 Year 5 Xears Maturity Tota
- - - - - 9,764 9,764
8,213 55,450 31,134 251 198 1M 95,417
- 18,400 - - - 18,400
722 39,800 5,429 71,636 27,793 13,601 158,981
187,504 148,680 5,268 72,409 82,664 496,525
- 1,934 - - 1,934
- 597 - - - 597
- 1,884 - - - - 1,884
- - - - - 120 120
196,439 266,745 41831 144296 110,655 23,656 783,622
309,065 304,025 26,171 12,739 - - 652,000
3,496 174 2,023 - - 5,693
3,423 - - - - - 3,423
- - - 20,000 8,589 19,967 48,556
- 597 - - - - 597
- 2,641 197 192 - - 3,030
QLS__Q&&‘ 307.437 28,391 2931 __8.589 20,588 713,920
(119,545)  (40,692) 13,440 LLL36S 102,066 =3.008 09702
- 261 - - - 261

433 57 56 723 287 4,774 6,330
3,187 5,559 5,576 2,194 6 12,139 28,661

- 8,876 - - - - 8,876

- 209,069 11,442 216 - - 220,727
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- 8,648 - 2911 - - 11,559
3,620 232,470 17,074 6,071 293 16913 227,041




Fair value

Fair value is the estimated value that the Bank and its subsidiaries could reccive Irom the sale of financial assets, or
the estimated cost of redeeming their financial liabilities. Fair values are based on market value, or estimated values

derived from using general market principles of calculation.

The following is a summary of carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial assets and liabilities and
off-balance sheet items as of December 31, 2003 and 2002,

(Million Baht)

Consolidated
2003 2002
Carrying rryin
Amount Fair value Amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Cash 18,699 18,699 9,764 9,764
Interbank and money market items - net 104,922 104,922 94,340 94,840
Securities purchased under resale agreements 31,710 31,710 18,400 1A8,400
[nvestments - net 135,254 201,063 164,863 166,095
Loans and accrued interest receivables - net 483,355 483,355 429,108 429,108
Customers’ liability under acceptances 676 676 597 597
Accrued income receivable 1,671 1,671 1,950 1,950
Other assets _ 2,699 2,699 138 138
Total Financial Assets 178,986 844,795 219,660 720,892
Finangial Liabilities
Deposits 684,946 684,946 651,393 651,393
Interbank and money market items 7,101 7,101 ‘ 5,693 5,693 |
Liabilities payable on demand 7,042 7,042 3,423 3,423
Borrowings ' 59,841 60,930 48,556 49,791
Bank's liability under acceptances 676 676 597 597
Accrued interest payable 2,564 2,564 3,030 3,030
Other liabilities __1.626 1,62 884 884
Total Financial Liabililies 163,796 164,383 213,576 114,811
Off-balance sheet items
Forward exchange contracts 243,796 2,733 220,727 (1,114)
Cross currency swaps 960 (38) 627 (30
Interest rate swaps 32024 _ 62 11,55 ‘ __ 38

Total off-balance sheet items 276,780 2,757 232913 (1,108)




(Million Baht)

The Bank
2003 2002
Amount Fair value - Amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Cash 18,699 18,699 9,764 9,764
Interbank and money market items - net 104,644 104,644 94,773 94,773
Securities purchased under resale agreements 31,710 31,710 18,400 {8,400
Investments - net 140,765 206,599 158,768 159,994
Loans and accrued interest receivables - net 482,258 482,258 440,092 440,092
Customers’ liability under acceptances 676 676 597 597
Accrued income receivable 1,598 1,598 1,884 1,884
Other assets _2.664 _2.664 120 120"
Total Financial Assets 783,014 848,848 724,398 . 125,624
Financial Liabilities
Deposits 685,222 685,222 652,000 652,000
Interbank and money market items 6,896 6,896 5,693 5,693
Liabilities payable on demand 7,042 7,042 3,423 3,423
Borrowings 59,841 60,930 48,556 49,791
Bank’s liability under acceptances 676 676 597 597
Accrued interest payable 2,564 2,564 3,030 3,030
Other liabilities 1532 1,532 621 621
Total Financial Liabilities 163,773 264,862 113,920 215,155
ff-bal heet item
Forward exchange contracts 243,796 2,733 220,727 (1,114)
Cross currency swaps 960 (38) 627 (30)
Interest rate swaps 32,024 __62 11,559 __ 38
Total off-balance sheet items 276,780 2,152 232913 (1.106)

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair values of financial assets and

liabilities as disclosed herein:

The fair values of cash, interbank and money market items (assets and liabilities), securities purchased under resale
agreements, customers’ liability under acceptances, liabilities payable on demand, securities sold under repurchase
agreements, bank’s liabilities under acceptances and accrued interest payables are stated at their carrying values at the

reporting date.

The fair values ot held-for-trading investments, available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity investiments are



The fair value of general investments is stated at cost, net of allowance for their impairment.

The fair values of loans and accrued interest receivables are based on the carrying values of loans and accrued interest

receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts since most loans are floating rate ones.

The carrying values of deposits usually approximate fair values, except for negotiable certificates of deposit (NCD) for

which fair value is calculated by using the expected yield on borrowings.
The fair.values of borrowings are estimated by using market values.
Derivatives

The Bank enters into derivalive transactions (or the following main reasons:
1. Hedging of the Bank’s exposure to financial risks.

Hedgings activities are designed to reduce or climinate exchange rate and/or interest rate risk related to the

Bank’s financial assets, liabilitics, contingent accounts or expected transactions in the tuture.

Derivatives undertaken for this purpose include Forward Exchange Contracts, Cross Currency Swaps and Interest

Rate Swaps.

The Bank controls credit risk on derivatives transactions by using procedures similar to those used when granting

general loans.
2. Hedging of the customer’s exposure to financial risks.

At the request of a customer, the Bank will enter into certain derivative contracts in order for customers to hedge
financial risk. The Bank uses appropriate hedging tools to take advantage of price differences or net market price

changes.

The derivatives used lor this purpose are Forward Exchange Contracts, Cross Currency Swaps and [nterest Rate

Swaps.

The market risk of derivative transactions used to hedge the customer’s exposure comprises exchange rate risk
and interest rate risk. To minimize risks, the Bank’s policy is to conduct full-amount hedges with customers or
counterparties. The Bank controls credit risk and liquidity risk by using procedures to those used when granting

general loans.
3. Trading Purposes
The objective of derivatives for trading purposes is to take advantage of price movement in the short-term market.

Derivatives used for this purpose include Forward Exchange Contracts, Cross Currency Swaps and Interest Rate

Swaps. )

The Bank controls credil risk and liquidity risk by using procedures similar to those used when granting general

loans.




.

38 RECLASS!‘}SATION OF ACCOUNTS

Certain accounts in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002 have been reclassified to conform

with the presentation in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2003,




